
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 15 November 2021 
 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 23 November 2021 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
Via Teams Live: 

https://bit.ly/3HlAq2l 

 
 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chair) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Anne Buckley 
Councillor Tina Campbell 
Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor David Pragnell 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023 
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Public Participation  
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2021. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.   2020/21 External Audit Progress Update (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

6.   Annual Governance Statement (Pages 15 - 46) 
 

7.   Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr 2) (Pages 47 - 56) 
 

8.   Corporate Fees and Charges (Pages 57 - 80) 
 

9.   Verbal Update on Staffing Report  
 

10.   Verbal Updates from Members Representing Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) / Procurement Executive Group (PEG)  
 

11.   Action List (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

12.   Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 83 - 86) 
 

13.   A&R Work Programme (Pages 87 - 88) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 11 January 2022 at 6:15 pm 

In the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 19 October 2021  (6:15 pm – 7:04 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Buckley (from 18.32), 
Campbell, Grajewski, Irish, Manning (from 18.25), Pragnell (from 18.58), 
Park and Tennent 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

92. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

93. MINUTES 
 
Councillor Grajewski noticed a spelling mistake on page 3 of the minutes, 
gaged should have been gauged. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2021 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

94. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

95. VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING STRATEGIC 
RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP (SRMG) / PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE 
GROUP (PEG) 
 
(a) Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
 

The Executive Head of Governance reported that the Group had 
met on 16 September 2021 and the following updates were 
provided: 
 

 The Corporate Risk Register was reviewed, and risks 
discussed, including key vacant posts and possible mitigation 
needed whilst those posts were vacant. 

 The Corporate Manager was in the process of carrying out a 
corporate review of resources, entitled Attract, Recruit, 
Retain – which would hopefully help identify areas for 
improvement.  

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 The Operational Risk Register would be regularly reviewed 
and there is a programme to call in officers to update SRMG 
on processes and risk mitigation measures. 

 
Councillor Grajewski added that she had suggested targeted social 
media advertising for Direct Services recruitment, and that there 
would be advertising on the side of vehicles. She hoped that a 
further updated could be provided after the next SRMG meeting. 
 
Councillor Grajewski commented that public money spends should 
always be cited and in the public domain and as such she felt the 
Corporate Risk Register should be a public document. 
 
Councillor Campbell raised concerns that the vacancies in key posts 
could have implications on performance and the Committee 
discussed the content for the forthcoming Staffing Update report for 
next month’s meeting. Councillors would like to understand the 
implications of key vacancies. Councillors were encouraged to 
articulate their concerns to officers so that the report can include 
specific commentary. 

 
(b) Procurement Executive Group (PEG) 
 

No Procurement Executive Group meeting had been held since the 
last meeting. The next meeting was scheduled for 2 November 
2021. 
 

[NOTE: Councillor Manning joined the meeting at 18.25.] 

 
96. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

 
The Executive Head of Governance updated the Committee that the 
Corporate Risk Management Annual Report 20/21 did not go to Cabinet 
on the 18 October 2021 as was dated in the report. It would instead go to 
Cabinet on 9 December 2021. 
 
Councillor Grajewski requested confirmation on why the risk was deemed 
moderate in the table in Appendix B. 
 
Councillor Campbell raised concerns that she did not think that the Council 
could claim to be ambitious with climate change, and that using the word 
ambitious in relation to finance was a concern but that the Council should 
be ambitious when talking about reinvigoration and regeneration of the 
town. 
 
The Committee suggested that the report needed more work and that the 
wording needed some changes. 
 

4



3 
 

 

It was agreed that the Executive Head of Governance would do some 
more work on the report and recirculate ahead of Cabinet on 9 December 
2021. 
 
The Committee requested an update and feedback from the climate 
change team. 
 
The Executive Head of Governance advised that a climate change update 
was already on the agenda for Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel on 
6 December 2021. The Chair encouraged members of the Committee to 
attend this meeting to receive the update.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Corporate Risk 
Management Annual Report 2020/21. 
 
[NOTE: Councillor Buckley joined the meeting at 18.32 and did not take 
part in the debate or vote on the item.] 

 
97. ACTION LIST 

 
The Committee considered the Action List, which set out the recent 
decisions and subsequent actions arising from the Committee.  
 
It was confirmed that the Action List would be updated at the next meeting 
of the Audit and Resources Committee on 23 November 2021. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Action List be noted. 
 

98. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 
An update was provided that the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Policy 
was now going to Cabinet on 9 December 2021, instead of 18 October 
2021 as was in the current Forward Plan attached to the Agenda. 
 
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the current Forward Plan be noted. 
 

99. A&R WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered its current Work Programme and requested 
that there were some adjustments to the November and January 
meetings. 
 

5



4 
 

 

It also requested that the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Policy was 
brought to the Audit and Resources Committee meeting on 23 November 
2021, before it was taken to Cabinet on 9 December 2021. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 
[NOTE: Councillor Pragnell joined the meeting at 18.58 and did not take 
part in the debate or vote on the item.] 

 

6



Eastleigh Borough
Council
Audit planning report
update
Year ended 31 March 2021
November 2021

7

A
genda Item

 5



2

12 November 2021

Dear Committee Members

Audit planning report update
Year ended 31 March 2021

This report provides the Audit and Resources Committee with an update to our risk identification for the 2020/21 audit, and specifically sets out
our assessment of risks of significant weaknesses in the Council’s value for money (VFM) arrangements identified in the current year.

In our outline audit planning report presented at the 9 March 2021 Audit and Resources Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview
of our audit scope and approach for the audit of the financial statements and VFM. At that time we had not fully completed our detailed VFM
planning. We are therefore providing this planning update to set out both our audit responsibilities in respect of the Council’s arrangements to
secure VFM and communicate our assessment of risks of significant weaknesses in those arrangements having now completed our detailed
planning work.

We also confirm that there have been no changes in our assessment of significant risk, frauds risks, and other areas of audit focus considered in
our audit of the financial statements to those communicated to you in our outline planning report.

If you have any queries in respect of this report, please contact me.

Yours faithfully

Janet Dawson
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

Audit and Resources Committee
Eastleigh Borough Council
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street,
Eastleigh,
SO50 9YN.

8



3

Value for Money Risks01 01V
F
M

9



4

Value for money

The Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance
issued in support of that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on the Council’s arrangements for securing value for money
from it’s use of resources.

Arrangements for
Securing value for

money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
effectiveness

Governance

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code

Under the 2020 Code we are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. However,
there are no longer overall evaluation criteria on which we need to conclude. Instead the 2020 Code
requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to
report to the Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the
arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and
effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages
and delivers its services.

V
F
M

10



5

Value for money

Planning and identifying VFM risks

The NAO’s guidance notes require us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the
Council’s arrangements, in order to enable us to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any
significant weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. This is a change to 2015 Code guidance notes where the NAO
required auditors as part of planning, to consider the risk of reaching an incorrect conclusion in relation to the overall criterion.

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider:
• The Council’s governance statement
• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates (such as OfSTED) and other bodies and
• Any other evidence source that we regard as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.
We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the
assessment of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant
weakness in arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:
• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on

action/improvement plans.
We should also be informed by a consideration of:
• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves, or impact on budgets or cashflow forecasts;
• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue.

V
F
M

11



6

Value for money

Responding to identified risks

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate,
challenge of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the audit committee.

Reporting on VFM

In addition to the commentary on arrangements, where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the 2020 Code has the same requirement as the 2015 Code in that we should refer to this by
exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

However, a new requirement under the 2020 Code is for us to include the commentary on arrangements in a new Auditor’s Annual Report. The 2020
Code states that the commentary should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider
public. This should include details of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our
view as to whether they have been implemented satisfactorily.

Risk assessment for 2020/21

We have now completed our detailed 2020/21 VFM planning. We have identified two risks of significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM arrangements
as set out below.

Significant Risk 1 - Risk of significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure that all significant risks and financial pressures are built
into its Medium Term Financial Plan

Issue and Risk

In recent years the Council has pursued a strategy of both investing in commercial property and residential property development to generate income.
This investment has been financed through external borrowing, both long-term from the Public Works Loan Board and short-term from other local
authorities.  As a result the Council held in excess of £500 million of borrowing at the end of 2020/21, of which approximately £150 million is short-term
and will therefore require refinancing in the near future.

To date this policy of commercialisation has been successful in generating revenue streams which have reduced the need for the Council to rely on local
taxation to maintain its current and planned level of service provision. However, the level of commercial activity entered into and related borrowing
introduces a greater level of risk and complexity to the Council’s financial planning arrangements. Although some of the Council’s commercial activity
and related income streams have not been adversely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, for example residential property development, there has been
an adverse impact in other areas, for example retail, leisure, and hotel property investments and linked income streams such as car parking.

V
F
M

12



7

Value for money

Risk assessment for 2020/21 (continued)

Covid-19 also raises further uncertainty around the Council’s continued ability to borrow, particularly where short-term borrowing needs to be re-
financed, and at what cost.  The Council’s ability to maintain the level of service provision assumed by the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is
therefore dependent on the extent and duration of current income losses caused by Covid-19, the Council’s ability to refinance debt, the cost of
replacement borrowing and the Council’s ability to borrow further should there be a need to do so.  Considering all of the above, the Council flagged a
material uncertainty in the going concern basis of preparation disclosure in both its 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial statements around its ability to
continue providing the current level of services without an increase in planned income. We flagged this disclosure in 2019/20 through the inclusion of a
material uncertainty paragraph in our audit report.

The continuing adverse impacts of Covid-19 in 2020/21, reduced Covid-19 grant funding in 2021/22 and forecasts of increases in interest rates in
2022/23 mean that we consider there is a risk of significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure that all significant risks and financial
pressures are built into the MTFP. We consider the risk to be relevant to the Council’s arrangements for financial sustainability, that is
how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services. We also consider work undertaken in this area to be
relevant to our review of management’s going concern assessment.

Audit Response

We will consider the Council arrangements to ensure that all relevant financial risks are properly considered in its medium-term financial planning to allow
for financial sustainability and the planned level of service provision. Specifically we will:

• Review the key assumptions underpinning MTFP projections for reasonableness,

• Consider the link between the Council’s cash flow forecasting and treasury management processes and the MTFP to ensure that the cost of anticipated
borrowing is adequately reflected in medium-term financial projections.

• Consider how the Council plans to manage the impact of increases in interest rates, which are widely considered as likely in 2022/23.

• Consider the current level of income losses brought about by Covid-19 and the plans and mitigating actions of the Council to address any continuing or
further shortfalls in historic levels income from its commercial activity and related income streams.

• Follow-up our recommendation relevant to this area raised as part of our 2019/20 Audit Results Report and report back on progress made.

V
F
M

13



8

Value for money

Risk assessment for 2020/21

Significant risk 2 - risk of significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure that decisions are taken based on comprehensive and
accurate supporting information that is based on reasonable assumptions, and that decisions are taken in an appropriately transparent way

Issue and risk

During 2020/21 the Council made a significant decision to self-deliver the construction of houses within the One Horton Heath (OHH) development which
previously only extended to the development of serviced land plots. Reports were taken to both Cabinet and the Audit and Resources Committee in
February 2021 on the decision to approve the first stage of this scheme, known as the First Delivery Parcel (FDP). OHH is the flagship scheme within the
Council’s Housing Programme and the Council is the landowner of 320 acres. The project is now expected to deliver up to 2,500 new homes in total and
is therefore a very significant commitment with both delivery and financing risks. The Council expects 393 properties to be constructed as part of the
FDP split as follows:

• 157 properties developed for open market sale.

• 188 properties to be retained by the Council with the intention of the creation of a Housing Revenue Account in the future.

• 48 properties to be sold as affordable housing under the ‘First Homes’ scheme.

In order to finance the FDP the Council expects to enter into an additional £53m of external borrowing.

We therefore consider the proposal to be a significant risk and commitment for the Council. It is important for the Cabinet to be able to take decisions on
the development, and the Audit and Resources Committee to scrutinise those decisions properly, that the information provided to members is
comprehensive, accurate and based on reasonable assumptions. We also note that papers on the decision were treated as commercially sensitive and are
therefore not available to the general public on the Council’s website. We consider the risk to be relevant to the Council’s arrangements for governance,
that is how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks.

Audit response

We will:

• Review and challenge the financial modelling that underpinned the financial projections in the reports taken to Cabinet and the Audit and Resources
Committee. In particular we will assess whether the reporting was an accurate reflection of the modelling undertaken and that the modelling was
based on reasonable assumptions and other supporting evidence.

• Consider the Council’s reporting arrangements for decisions of this significance to gain assurance that decisions are taken in an open and transparent
way.

V
F
M

14



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

23 November 2021  

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020-21 

Report of the Executive Head of Governance 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that: 
 

(1) the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be considered ahead of approval 
in January 2022, and; 

 
(2) The Code of Corporate Governance 2021/22 be noted.  

 

 

Summary 
 
The Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This 
document has been reviewed and updated and now requires consideration by the Audit 
and Resources Committee. The Executive Head of Governance will seek approval of the 
AGS in January 2022 when the Committee will be asked to approve the Statement of 
Accounts for 2020/21. 

Statutory Powers 
 
S151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The publication of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), whilst not having 
a direct impact in respect of the achievement of Corporate Plan objectives, 
ensures the Council is being open and transparent in the way in which it 
conducts itself and its affairs and has adopted an effective system of internal 
control.    

Introduction 

2. Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council 
to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and to publish an AGS.  

15

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

3. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Delivering Good Governance Framework was first published in 2007 and 
updated in 2012 and 2016. The framework defines the principles that should 
underpin the governance of each local government organisation by providing 
a structure to help individual authorities with their approach to governance. 

4. The AGS 2020/21 reflects the example published in the addendum to the 
Delivering Good Governance Framework 2016 and can be found in Appendix 
A. Under CIPFA guidance, the Council is also required to adopt a Code of 
Corporate Governance (2021/22), which looks ahead to the Council’s 
governance priorities and effectiveness for the coming year. This document 
can be found in Appendix B. 

5. In addition, the Council is required to prepare an Annual Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority 
Accounting. The Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 will be presented to this 
Committee in January 2022. At the same meeting this Committee will be 
asked to approve the AGS 2020/21 and adopt the Code of Corporate 
Governance 2021/22.  

Financial Implications 

6. There are no direct financial implications of producing the AGS. The Council’s 
external auditors audit and report on the content of the statement. 

Risk Assessment 

7. The preparation and publication of an AGS in accordance with the Framework 
fulfils the statutory requirement in England for a local authority to conduct a 
review at least once in each financial year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and to include a statement reporting on the review. 

8. The preparation of the accounts is completed in accordance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice and review by external auditors (EY) to ensure that 
standards are adequately met.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because   

 It is a report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. 
 

10. Therefore, it is considered that for this decision the equality duty does not 
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment has not been 
carried out. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

11. The AGS and Statement of Accounts do not have any implications for the 
environment or climate change. 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Conclusion 

12. To achieve effective governance, each local authority should be able to 
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the core and sub 
principles contained within the Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework 2016. It should develop and maintain a local Code of 
Governance and should test its governance structure and partnerships 
against the framework’s principles.  

13. The AGS explains how Eastleigh Borough Council has also met the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

14. The AGS 2020/21 and the Code of Corporate Governance 2021/22 are 
appended to this report for consideration and noting ahead of formal approval 
of the AGS in January 2022. 

 

JOANNE CASSAR 
EXECUTIVE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE 

 
Date: 31 October 2021 
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar 
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

Background Papers: None. 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual 
Governance 
Statement 
2020-2021 

19



2 
 

Scope of Responsibility 
 

 
 

We are responsible for ensuring that our business is conducted in accordance with 
the law and that proper standards and public money are upheld and safeguarded and 
accountability properly demonstrated. We have a duty under the Local Government 
Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in 
which our functions are exercised, whilst having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

We are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of 
our affairs and facilitating effective exercise of our functions (which includes 
arrangements for the management on risk). 
 

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to 
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal 
control and to publish an AGS. This report therefore serves as a review of the year 
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. The country went into lockdown on 16 March 
2020 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. This impacted the Council as a number of 
non-critical services were paused, staff were required to work from home and the 
Council responded to the pandemic through supporting residents, the community and 
local businesses.  This is reflected in this Annual Governance Statement 2020/21.   
 
We have prepared this Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to comply with the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015, and in accordance with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’ 
(2016) and its seven principles. 
 

In line with the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework this statement is ‘an open and 
honest self-assessment’ of the Council’s performance for 2020/21. 
 

 

The purpose of the Governance Framework 
 

The Governance Framework comprises the systems, policies, processes, culture and 
values, by which we direct and control, and the activities through which we are 
accountable to, and engage with, the community. It enables the Council to monitor 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives 
have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 
 
Our system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. However, it cannot eliminate all risk of failure to 
achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and 
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 
 
The Council has a Code of Corporate Governance which sets out the governance 
arrangements at the Council. This is reviewed an updated annually. 

20



3 
 

 
 

Assurance Opinion 
 
Internal Audit is responsible for objectively assessing the adequacy of governance 
and the management of risk and providing an objective and evidenced based opinion 
on governance, risk management and internal control. A risk assessment 
methodology is used to formulate a three-year internal audit plan which details all the 
auditable areas across the Council. Using the risk assessment, the Chief Internal 
Auditor is able to determine the frequency of audit review and presents an Annual 
Internal Audit Plan to the Audit & Resources Committee for approval in March each 
year. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be 
submitted to the relevant service lead and/or Executive Head, Corporate Director, 
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive. The report includes recommendations for 
improvements that are included within an action plan and requires agreement by 
service leads, Chief Financial Officer and/or Executive Heads, Corporate Directors 
and the Chief Executive. The process includes follow-up reviews of high priority 
recommendations to ensure that they are acted upon, usually within six months. 
 
The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was revised twice during the year to account for the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on audit resources. The Internal Audit team paused 
planned audit work in March 2020 and were redirected to support the Council with the 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Audit & Resources Committee were kept 
fully apprised of the situation.  
 
The following opinion is based on the audit activity undertaken during 
2020/21. Despite a very unprecedented year sufficient audit work has been 
completed to enable the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) to form a reasonable 
conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of Eastleigh Borough Council’s internal 
control environment. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) confirms that the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control is adequate in most areas. On occasions, 
audit testing found that not all controls are operating in practice and recommendations 
to enhance governance, risk management and internal controls were highlighted 
within the appropriate audit report. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) is of the opinion 
that work completed in the past year has shown that revised systems and processes 
are in the main operating well with findings moving towards more recommendations 
around compliance and enhancements/improvements rather than there being missing 
key controls. 
 
Lisa Smy – Chief Internal Auditor (Acting)  

21



4 
 

 
 
 

Sign off by CEO and Leader: 
The Council has good governance arrangements in place, which we are confident, 
protect its interests and provide necessary assurances to our customers and 
stakeholders. The introduction of a new Executive Team will enhance governance 
arrangements as leadership of the Council is closely coordinated, aligned and the 
Executive Areas collaborate with one another. We propose over the coming year to 
continue to address Internal Audit recommendations and the matters identified and 
noted in this Annual Governance Statement to further enhance our governance 
arrangements. Governance arrangements will continue to be monitored by the 
Executive Head of Governance. Updates of any progress will be provided 
within the next AGS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

22



5 
 

 
Covid-19 Pandemic 
 
In March 2020, a national public health emergency was declared by the Government 
in response to the global coronavirus pandemic. Eastleigh Borough Council was 
prepared through its detailed business continuity arrangements which were quickly 
activated to ensure that critical services continued to operate across the Borough.  

The following occurred in response: 

 Formation of the Strategic Incident Management Team (SIMT)  

 Formation of the Tactical Task Force (to implement actions identified by the SIMT as 
quickly and effectively as possible to ensure services continued to operate) 

 Use of Emergency Powers as per the Constitution, recorded in a decision log 
retrospectively reported to Cabinet and Council 

 Updating of processes in response to remote working 

 Covid-19 Risk Register to monitor mitigation on risks arising as a result of the impact 
of Covid-19  

 Close monitoring of the IT network and systems using end to end encrypted network  

 Guidance to staff on working remotely and regular surveys conducted to assess well-
being  

 Employee Support programme with a variety of channels to promote good staff 
welfare  

A Cabinet report submitted in April 2020 detailed how we quickly adapted to changing 
circumstances and implemented new ways of working. This report provided a 
summary of the actions that were taken to ensure that critical services continued to 
operate whilst also ensuring the health, safety and well-being of staff, Councillors and 
residents. It also provides details of key decisions that were taken using Delegated 
Powers, as set out in the Council’s Constitution in the absence of the usual 
Committee meetings.  
 
The pandemic has provided reassurance over our resilience, governance and 
decision-making arrangements as we have been able to maintain and deliver most of 
our services in this challenging environment, adapting our methods of working and 
decision making as necessary.  
 
The Coronavirus Act (2020) allowed authorities to conduct meetings and take 
decisions in ways other than face to face and the new powers were adopted to enable 
the delivery of virtual Council, Committee and Scrutiny Panel meetings by quickly 
adapting to the use of new technology and best practice. This has ensured that good 
governance prevails and allows continued access by the public and other interested 
stakeholders including the media.   

The impact of the pandemic is likely to continue to affect governance arrangements 
and changes to working practices are continually being assessed to ensure 

23

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=6739&Ver=4


6 
 

appropriate controls exist. It is also apparent that the pandemic has had, and will 
continue to have, an impact upon the Council’s resources, financial resilience, 
potential pausing of certain projects and long-term flexible working. This will remain a 
key governance issue as the continuing impact is assessed and mitigations are put in 
place.  

Prior to the second lockdown, plans were being drawn up to reopen safely. However, 
these were paused when a further lockdown was introduced in January 2021. The 
Council was in a good place to continue to manage the emergency with the planning 
protocols put in place in March 2020.  

Throughout the pandemic, the health and wellbeing of our residents, people who work 
in the Borough and our staff, have been the Council’s top priority. We have worked 
hard to continue to provide as many services as possible while ensuring resident’s 
safety, in line with the latest advice from the government. We have regularly provided 
information and advice about our services in relation to coronavirus and provided 
updates for the Borough’s businesses via our Covid-19 page on the website and 
weekly updates by email that residents were invited to sign up to.  

As 2020/21 ends the Covid-19 incident remains in a ‘response’ phase with significant 
work taking place to ensure our services continue to be delivered, and in particular 
that vulnerable residents are supported through the Borough’s Local Response 
Centre (LRC). However, the Council has been working on Covid-19 recovery for a few 
months now, alongside responding to day-to-day Covid-19 issues as the Council is 
still managing a major live incident as well as delivering business as normal. A 
Cabinet report covering the proposals to support recovery and updates on the work 
on Covid-19 was submitted in November 2020 and will form a basis of the recovery 
plans which will be incorporated into the Service Plans as we prepare to come out of 
lockdown. 

24

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=6606&Ver=4


7 
 

Key Elements of the governance framework and an assessment of its effectiveness for 
2020/21 

 
The Council has an overarching vision for the Borough: To lead and support Eastleigh 
Borough and its communities: developing a strong and sustainable economy that supports 
improved standards of living for residents; promoting thriving and healthy communities; and 
maintaining an attractive and sustainable environment that residents’ value. 
 
We will do this by: 

• Having a vision and a plan for the future of our Borough 

• Engaging with customers to continually improve our services 

• Meeting the needs of our residents, businesses and other key stakeholders 

• Strengthening our relationships with partners 

• Operating in a business-like, commercially focused way 

• Having a skilled, high performing workforce 

• Making the best use of technology 

• Ensuring our services are well planned and efficient 
 
We also believe that success is achieved not just by ‘what we do’, but by the 
‘way we do it’. Having staff who demonstrate the right behaviours for our organisation is just 
as important as having the right skills, experience and knowledge for our roles. Defining and 
demonstrating those behaviours is essential if we are to deliver on our mission of ‘Supporting 
Communities, Improving Lives.’ Our ‘Way We Work’ framework is based on our core values: 
Fairness, Ambition and Empowerment. 
 
The following table provides detail of how the Council can demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Good Governance in accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government’ (2016) and its seven principles: 
 
Principle A – Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of the law. 
 
Principle B – Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C – Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 
benefits. 
 
Principle D – Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes. 
 
Principle E – Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it. 
 
Principle F – Managing risks 
and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management. 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 
effective accountability. 
 

25



 

Governance Principle Assurance on Compliance 

Acting in the public interest requires a commitment to effective arrangements for: 

Principle A – Behaving with 
integrity, demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of the 
law. 

 The roles and responsibilities of our Councillors and staff and the processes we use to 
govern Council business are defined in the Council’s Constitution. Our Constitution sets 
out how we operate and how we make decisions. The Council must make decisions 
efficiently, transparently and accountable. 

 We have codes of conduct in place for Councillors and staff to make sure that public 
business is conducted with fairness and integrity and that we define high ethical values 
and the standards of behavior we expect. 

 The Council reviewed the Code of Conduct in November 2020 to include the Code of 
Ethics. Working in an ethical and principled manner should act as a guide to employees 
when undertaking their role, and the seven principles included in the Code are from a 
central set of standard (The Nolan Standards) which inform public office holders. 

 We publish a register of interests to ensure that any conflict of interest remains open 
and transparent. 

 The register of gifts and hospitality for Councillors is maintained by the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 The staff register of gifts and hospitality has been reviewed with a new policy published 
March 2021. 

 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) Regulations 2003 require that every 
authority publicises, within its area, the sum paid by it in that year under the scheme to 
each Councillor and co-opted member in respect of basic allowance, special 
responsibility allowance, travelling and subsistence allowance.  

 Eastleigh Borough Council carried out a Community Governance Review in accordance 
with the provisions of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, 
and other relevant statutory provisions. The review commenced in early December 
2020 when residents and other stakeholders were invited to give their views about 
creating one or more new parish councils in the unparished area of Eastleigh Borough. 
Responses and proposals were considered and approved by the Council in February 
2021. These changes can now be implemented. 
 

26

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/councillors-meetings-and-decision-making/our-constitution
http://ebc01-132:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=6851&Ver=4
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/community-governance-review/review-of-unparished-area-of-eastleigh-202021


 

Principle B – Ensuring 
openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 

 Our Council meetings are open to members of the public to attend and residents and 
other stakeholders are welcome to record and film them. The Council adapted its 
approach during the pandemic to include virtual meetings as the Coronavirus Act 
(2020) allowed authorities to conduct meetings and take decisions in ways other than 
face to face. 

 Our committee agendas, minutes and decisions, (including Cabinet decisions) are made 
publicly available on the Council’s website to ensure transparency and openness. All our 
public meetings are also held in accessible venues around the Borough. A limited 
number of reports are considered in private session only when the subject meets the 
prescribed criteria. A summary of these is published and the rationale for non-disclosure 
made available. 

 We communicate our work, purpose, aims and vision regularly through several 
different communications channels. The Borough News is delivered to 55,000 plus 
homes and we have a range of social media channels through which we 
communicate updates. 

 We publish and regularly update a range of content and open data on our Freedom of 
Information, Publication Scheme and Transparency Code pages on our website. 

 We offer a  Primary authority partnership for businesses as a single point of contact for 
Environmental Health matters. 

 We publish a  contracts register on a quarterly basis and are currently reviewing the 
procurement strategy. 

(In addition to the overarching requirements for acting in the public interest found in principles A & B, achieving good 
governance also requires a commitment to, and effective arrangements for: 

 
 

27

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/environmental-health/primary-authority
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/procurement


 

Principle C – Defining 
outcomes in terms of 
sustainable 
economic, social, and 

  environmental benefits. 

 The Corporate Plan 2015-2025 is at the heart of our programme for the future. Through 
our three Corporate themes, green borough, healthy community and prosperous place, 
it provides clear direction enabling us to manage our resources to deliver excellent 
services for local people in the future. It supports our vision to lead and support 
Eastleigh Borough and its communities: developing a strong and sustainable economy 
that supports improved standards of living for residents; promoting thriving and healthy 
communities; and maintaining an attractive and sustainable environment that residents 
value. 

 The Corporate Action Plan (CAP) reflects the ambition of the Council to deliver for 
residents and businesses in the borough, and now incorporates measures to support 
response and recovery in relation to the Covid19 pandemic. 

 In April 2020 we received the Inspector’s letter on the  Local Plan2016 - 2036 following 
the public examination. She explained that the strategic growth option north of 
Bishopstoke and Fair Oak should not be included in the current plan, and that further 
evidence is required to assess all options for strategic growth in a local plan 
review.  She also indicated that the Council can proceed to adopt the plan subject to 
further work to review countryside gaps and the status of the Chickenhall Lane Link 
Road.  The Council has now completed this work and is scheduled to consider the 
necessary ‘main modifications’ to the Plan in May 2021.  Subject to the public 
consultation on these modifications and receipt of the Inspector’s final report, the 
Council can move towards adopting the Plan in the Autumn of 2021.    
 

28

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/council-strategies-and-policies
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/council-strategies-and-policies
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy-and-implementation/local-plan/emerging-local-plan-2016-2036
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy-and-implementation/local-plan/emerging-local-plan-2016-2036


 

Principle D – Determining the 
interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes. 

 We produce a Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) annually, considering known 
issues and applying a number of assumptions to the Council’s finances. The MTFP 
provides, on a rolling basis, a projection of the Council’s 
finances over a four-year period and in doing so establishes the broad financial 
principles around which Councillors can develop portfolio plans and consider, at a high 
level, the Council’s budget strategy. This year, due to the uncertainty of the impact of 
the pandemic, a regular review of the MTFP has been carried out and reported to 
Councillors to demonstrate that the Council remains in a strong financial position and 
is prepared for any further unforeseen changes.  

 In previous years the Council has worked towards achieving efficiencies without 
cutting services. With the current situation, services are being delivered in uncertain 
times and therefore the resources are being focused based on priority. Once the 
situation becomes more stable, hopefully during 2021/22, the service planning process 
will inform a revised Continuous Improvement Strategy which will then be regularly 
monitored and delivered. 

 We continue to review and update our corporate policies register on our website. 

 We have in place a process for monitoring all statutory government returns to ensure 
completion. The effects of Brexit on legislation and how it affects the Council will 
continue to be monitored and appropriate action taken to ensure continuing 
compliance. .Regular information and updates are published for residents via our 
website on our ‘Preparing the borough for Brexit’ page. 

 During March 2020, the coronavirus pandemic resulted in a nationwide emergency 
with lockdown measures instigated by the government. The Council operated under 
local emergency arrangements to ensure business continuity, prioritising human, 
monetary and physical resources accordingly to keep people safe and well, protect the 
vulnerable and protect the local economy. As lockdown eases, the Council will plan for 
recovery.  

 

29

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/preparing-the-borough-for-brexit


 

Principle E – Developing the 

entity’s capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership and 

the individuals within it. 

 The designated role of Head of Paid Service is accountable to the Council for all 
aspects of management including sound governance, providing quality 
information/support to inform decision making and scrutiny, supporting other statutory 
officers and building relationships with all Councillors. 

 We continue to review and update the Councillor training and induction programme as 
necessary. Local elections were cancelled due to the pandemic in 2020 with 
Councillors serving an extra year. Training and induction is in place to deliver to new 
Councillors following elections to be held in May 2021. 

 Further review of the Constitution is planned, to be approved before the end of 2021/22. 

 Regular monitoring and management of the Council’s performance, including financial 
performance is key to ensuring delivery against strategic objectives set out in the 
Council’s corporate plan 2015-2025, and contributes to the management of corporate 
risk. Performance is reviewed on a monthly basis by Management Liaison with 
quarterly and annual performance reports scrutinised by Policy & Performance 

 Changes were made to the Senior Leadership structure in January 2021 with the 
introduction of 9 executive heads to create a smaller, more collaborative, cohesive 
leadership team which aims to clarify accountability and responsibility. This means 
more empowerment and decision making can be made at the right level promoting 
more clarity of how this happens and creates a senior structure that aligns 
specialisms more closely with our Corporate Plan. 

 In February 2021, a development programme for the Leadership Team was agreed 
to commence in April 2021 and be delivered throughout 2021/22.  
 

30



 

Principle F – Managing risks 

and performance through 

robust internal control and 

strong public financial 

management. 

 We have a Risk Management approach which includes robust systems of identification, 
evaluation and control of risks which threaten the Council’s ability to meet its objectives 
to deliver services to the public. To ensure that risks were appropriately mitigated, a 
separate Covid19 specific Risk Register was developed has been kept under regular 
review by the Strategic Incident Management Team. This details the risks facing the 
Council and the impact on critical services.  

 The Corporate Risk Register is managed by the Council’s Corporate Leadership Board 
and updated for newly stated risks and ongoing matters on a quarterly basis. The 
register is also reviewed by the Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG). 

 Our Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 officer) is responsible for the proper 
administration of all aspects of the Council’s financial affairs including ensuring 
appropriate advice is given to the Council on all financial matters. 

 We are continuing to review and update all our obligations under GDPR legislation 
including data sharing agreements. 

 The Audit and Resource Committee act as the Council’s Audit Committee for internal 
and external audit, overseeing and reviewing the Council’s internal audit plan, risk 
management arrangements and ensure effective relationships between internal and 
external audit. The Committee also receives and considers the work of external audit 
and approves our governance and assurance statements, statement of accounts, and 
anti- fraud and anti-corruption arrangements. 

 We continually review the effectiveness of our complaints and compliments procedure. 

 We ensure effective anti-fraud and corruption arrangements are in place. 

 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring the Council acts in accordance with 
the law and the Constitution.  
 

31



 

 

Principle G – Implementing 
good practices in 
transparency, reporting, and 
audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 

 The views of Internal and external audit are reported regularly to the Audit & 
Resources Committee. 

 The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion forms part 
of the review of effectiveness along with the Annual Governance Statement. 

 We are committed to being open, accountable and transparent by making 
information available to our customers on our website. This includes the 
Freedom of Information Model Publication Scheme and the Transparency Code 
2015 pages which are regularly reviewed and updated. 

 Our Freedom of Information (FOI) and Environmental Information Regulation 
(EIR) processes have been reviewed and are regularly updated to comply with 
ICO guidelines. 

 We continue to embed GDPR requirements and monitor the effectiveness of this 
legislation which has led to a reduction in reports of data breaches. 

 Transparency arrangements are continuously reviewed 

 

32

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/council-spending/audit-of-accounts-and-audit-reports
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/publication-scheme
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/council-spending/audit-of-accounts-and-audit-reports
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/council/general-public-information/transparency-code/council-spending/audit-of-accounts-and-audit-reports


15 
 

Progress on Improvement of Areas requiring focus identified in the 
2019/2020 Annual Governance Statement 

 
 

Governance issues Planned Action Status 

Identified from 2019/20 governance review 

Review of staff code of 
conduct and compliance with 
it, including declaration of 
interests and gifts and 
hospitality 
Head of HR – March 2021 

Code of conduct to be 
updated and declaration 
of interests to be 
reviewed. 
Process to be defined and 
put into place. 

Completed 25/11/20 with 
code of ethics added as 
appendix. Gifts and 
Hospitality completed 
March 2021. 

Compliance with annual 
strategic cycle 

March 2021 Complete  

Review of the Constitution 
including Contract Standing 
Orders 

October 2020 Contract Standing 
Orders reviewed and 
amendments approved 
by Council November 
2020. 
 
Review of Constitution to 
be completed in 2021/22 
following the 
appointment of the new 
Monitoring Officer in 
May 2021. 
Key stakeholders being 
consulted. To be 
presented to Council for 
approval November 
2021. This will be carried 
forward to 2020/21. 

Development of an Action Plan 
in support of the Climate and 
Environment Strategy 

March 2021 Completed June 2020. 
Focus is now delivery of 
the Action Plan.  

Review of the impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic on 
Council operations and 
ongoing review of our 
response, action taken, 
lessons learnt and task force 
in place to instigate recovery 
plan once pandemic 
restrictions ease. 

Various - some short-term 
deadlines, 
other stretching to 18 
months. 

Delayed due to further 
lockdown. Covid-19 . 
Recovery Team will now 
review following 
successful restart after 
June 2021 
To be carried forward to 
2020/21. 
 

Review of the Procurement 
Strategy (& Policy) 

Date to be advised after 
government publish results 
of consultation. 

Awaiting outcome the 
Transforming Public 
Procurement Green 
Paper to ensure the new 
strategy aligns with 
recommendations.  
To be carried forward to 
2020/21. 
 

Development of a Code of 
Ethics & awareness training for 
staff 
 
 
 

September 2020 Completed (added to 
code of conduct Nov 20) 
Staff awareness raised 
through  
induction training and 
internal publications 

33



16 
 

Review of Partnership 
Arrangements to be carried – 
initially an Internal Audit. 
Assurance Review will be 
carried out and then findings to 
be actioned by Strategic 
Planning Manager and 
Partnership Administrators 
 

March 2021 Interim review completed. 
 
 

 
 

New issues identified during 2020/21 
In the review and preparation for this Annual Governance Statement, the following key areas 
were identified as meriting attention over the next 12 months. Implementation is monitored by 
the Corporate Governance Group on a quarterly basis. 

 
2020/21 Governance issues 
identified (for action in 
2021/22) 

Deadline Responsibility 

Development and approval of 
the recovery programme for 
the Town Centre (Guiding 
Regeneration Principles) 
 
 

August 2021 Corporate Leadership 
Board  

Review of Constitution 
 
 

November 2021 Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer 
 

Development of Procurement 
Strategy (incorporating 
procurement principles to 
address climate change, 
environment emergency and 
sustainability priorities) 

Spring 2022 Executive Head of 
Governance  

Development of hybrid 
working arrangements under 
Future Ways of Working 
programme 

March 2022 Executive Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

Formation of two new Parish 
Councils  

May 2022 Executive Head of 
Governance  

 

34



 

 

 

 

Code of Corporate Governance 2021/22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

Eastleigh Borough Council - Code of Corporate Governance 2021/22 

Review Date: September 2021 

INTRODUCTION 

Corporate Governance is the term used to describe the system by which Local Authorities direct and control their functions and relate to their communities. 

Governance is about how the Council ensures it has the right processes and values by which it operates and how they engage with and held accountable to 

their communities and stakeholders. 

Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use their resources. In addition, they have an 

overarching responsibility to serve the public interest - adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies. 

It is essential that Councils can demonstrate the appropriateness of their actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to 

ethical values and to respect the rule of law. 

We are committed to demonstrating that we have the necessary corporate governance arrangements in place to perform effectively. We follow guidance 

issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) ‘Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government (2016)’. 

The guidance defines the seven core principles, each supported by sub-principles that should underpin the governance framework of a local authority. 

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of law 

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 

 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability 

36



BENEFITS OF A CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

The documents and arrangements set out in the framework within this code demonstrate how we continually seek to ensure we always remain well 

governed and seek to achieve our objectives whilst acting in the public interest. We have a Constitution and associated governance documents and 

arrangements in place. The purpose of this Local Code of Governance is to set out the main principles of good governance that we are committed to and 

highlighting the key policies and processes that are in place to ensure these principles are followed. 

ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORTING 

In order to comply with the principles of good governance we must undertake to ensure that our systems and processes are continually monitored and 
reviewed and are kept up to date. 
 
Each year the Council will carry out a review to provide assurance that governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively, or to identify 
action that is planned to ensure effective governance in the future.  
 
 The outcome of the review will take the form of an Annual Governance Statement prepared on behalf of the Leader and Chief Executive. It will be 
submitted to the Audit and Resources for consideration and approval.  
 
The Annual Governance Statement will accompany the Council’s Statutory Statement of Accounts, as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations. 

 
 

 

 

 

37



 

38



Principle A – Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of law 
Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Behaving with 
integrity 

 Demonstrating 
strong commitment 
to ethical values 

 Respecting the rule 
of law 

 Comply with legislation and all relevant professional standards 

 Maintain formal codes of conduct defining standards of behaviour 
expected of both councillors and Officers Publicise Gifts and 
Hospitality Guidelines 

 Maintain a framework which addresses the risks of fraud and 
corruption including an Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Policy 
and a Whistleblowing policy. 

 Maintain effective systems to protect the rights of staff, including 
whistleblowing policies which are accessible and regularly 
communicated 

 Maintain a register of interests  

 Maintain arrangements to investigate complaints against councillors 
and officers including alleged misconduct 

 Maintain effective and accessible arrangements for dealing with 
complaints 

 The Council operates within the legal framework for local councils 
complying with its statutory duties and making the most of its 
powers to meet the needs of the Borough and its residents. 

 The Monitoring officer is responsible to the authority for ensuring 
that agreed procedures are followed and that all applicable statutes 
and regulations are complied with. 

 The Council ensures that statutory officers have the skills, resources 
and support necessary to perform effectively in their roles. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Codes of conduct 

 People Strategy 

 Council Meeting minutes 

 Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy 

 Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Internal Audit reports 

 Register of Interests 

 Register of Gifts & Hospitality 

 Complaints Policy & Procedure 

 Constitution 
 
 

39



Principle B – Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement: 

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Openness 

 Engaging 
comprehensively 
with Institutional 
stakeholders 

 Engaging with 
individual citizens 
and service users 
effectively  

 Seek the views of its stakeholders and respond appropriately 

 Provide a variety of opportunities for the public to engage effectively 
with the Council including rights to information, participation and 
how to complain or comment 

 Ensure Council meetings are accessible 

 Publish Agendas, minutes, report packs and a calendar for a full year 
for Council meetings on our website and a formal notice of each 
meeting will be displayed at our Council offices 

 Ensure publication of agendas and minutes 

 Set a balanced budget 

 Publish an Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Auditors 
report to inform stakeholders of the previous year’s achievements 
and outcomes. 

 Encourage and assist citizens to inspect the Statement of Accounts in 
accordance with regulations 

 Consult with stakeholders in the planning process 
 

 Public attendance at Council meetings 

 Constitution 

 Local Plan 

 Publication of all council agendas and minutes  

 Internet, Email & Social Media acceptable usage 
policy 

 Public inspection of accounts by our customers  

 Partnership Agreements 

 Public speaking in planning committee 

 Community Consultations  

 Communications Strategy  
 
 

 

 

Principle C – Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

40



Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Defining 
outcomes 

 Sustainable 
economic, social 
and 
environmental 
benefits 
 

 Make a clear statement of the Council’s purpose and vision and use it 
as a basis for all corporate & service planning 

 Publish on the Council’s website the various reports to communicate 
the Council’s activities and achievements including its financial position 
and performance 

 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes 

 The Corporate plan expresses the strategic objectives for the Council 
over the financial year and beyond. Alongside the objectives are the 
outcomes to be achieved. This information enables members and the 
services contributing to the delivery of the plan to be clear about the 
priorities for the Council. 

 Service Managers will prepare annual Service Plans indicating how they 
will meet objectives set out within the Corporate Plan and Corporate 
Action Plan  

 Services will regularly report on key performance indicators (KPIs) 
through our corporate performance cycle 

 Work through effective partnerships 

 We identify projects that will cumulatively deliver the strategic 
outcomes identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Our council vision within our Corporate Plan  

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Statement of Accounts 

 External Auditors letter and report 

 Service Plans 

 Corporate Action Plan 

 Local Plan 

 Performance Management framework including 
regular reporting of key performance indicators 

 Project register & project management 
methodology  

 Publication of transparency data 

 Climate and Environment Emergency Strategy 
and Action Plan  

 Evolving Procurement Policy  

 Equality Strategy and Action Plan 

 

41



 

Principle D – Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Determining 
Interventions 

 Planning 
interventions 

 Optimising 
achievement of 
intended outcomes  

 Make a clear statement of the Council’s purpose and aims and use 
this as a basis for corporate and service planning 

 Ensure budgets are prepared in accordance with organisational 
objectives and regularly reported upon 

 Provide senior managers and councillors with timely financial and 
performance information 

 Ensure there is a sound risk management framework to support the 
achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes 

 Have robust contingency arrangements in place for business 
continuity and disaster recovery 

 The Council has a Medium-Term Financial Plan to resource the 
Council’s aspirations and to assess and plan for any financial risks. The 
plan is reviewed annually and more frequently during the pandemic. 

 The Council seeks expertise from outside the authority when it does 
not have the necessary skills in-house, making use of peer reviews 
and other mechanisms for ensuring challenge of Council services.  

 Provide a robust programme of work to continuously improve council 
processes and the service we provide  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Risk Management Framework 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Regular financial and performance reporting to 
Cabinet 

 Business Continuity Plans 

 Disaster recovery arrangements and emergency 
plan 

 Council strategies & policies 

 Statutory returns to government 

 The Council has LGA, SOLACE and CIPFA 
membership to ensure best practice. 

 Organisational Development Review Group 
 

 

42



 

Principle E – Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Developing the 
Council’s capacity 

 Developing the 
capability of the 
Council’s 
leadership and 
other individuals  

 Set out a clear statement of the respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Council’s Cabinet, Full Council and individual 
Councillors through the Constitution 

 Set out a protocol to address the working relationship between 
the Chief Executive and leader enabling each to fulfil their 
respective roles 

 Maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic 
allocation of resources and ensure effective succession planning 
etc. 

 Maintain officer and councillor induction programmes 

 Assess the skills required by officers through the appraisal process 
and address any training gaps to enable roles to be carried out 
effectively 

 Develop the capabilities of councillors through training 

 Regularly review the scheme of delegation and Constitution and 
update when required 

 Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health and 
wellbeing of staff 

 We have developed a People Strategy which includes a corporate 
mission statement, values and Way We Work Framework 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 People Strategy 

 1:1 and Quarterly Performance Reviews 

 Exit interviews 

 Health and Wellbeing Policy 

 Effective induction programme for staff and 
councillors 

 Constitution 

 Councillor/officer protocol (Codes of Conduct) 

 Councillor training and development  

 Admin Committee  

 Occupational Health provider 

 Schemes of delegation for councillors and officers 

 Staff consultation 

 Professional qualified staff 

 Health and Safety Policy 

 Set of Corporate values 

 Way we work Framework  

 Staff recognition & reward programme 

 Executive Leadership Team away days with Cabinet  
 

 

43



 

Principle F – Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management  

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Managing risk 

 Managing 
performance 

 Robust internal 
control 

 Managing data 

 Strong public 
financial 
management  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Maintain an effective Audit and Resources Committee and Policy 
and Performance Scrutiny function 

 Ensure robust and integrated risk management arrangements are 
in place and responsibilities for managing individual risk is clearly 
allocated 

 Maintain regular programme of Councillor training 

 Maintain sound financial procedure rules to ensure consistency 
and clear financial protocols 

 Maintain a transparent complaints and feedback procedure 

 Maintain a risk-based programme of internal audits which are 
informed by the Council’s risk registers 

 Take account of service/project risks with each report providing 
an assurance opinion on how risks are being managed 

 Ensure effective anti-fraud and corruption arrangements are in 
place 

 Ensure effective information governance arrangements are in 
place to support compliance with existing and emerging 
legislation for data protection 

 Ensuring financial management supports decision making and 
provides enough information to support the delivery of the 
Council’s objectives 

 Regular reporting to Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny 

 Risk Management Policy & Strategy 

 Administration committee 

 Statutory Officers 

 Corporate and service risk registers 

 Terms of reference within Constitution  

 Financial Procedure Rules 

 Contract Procedure Rules 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Regular reporting and provision of information to 
Audit and Resources Committee including: 
1. Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report  
2. Individual audit reports 
3. Regular progress reports on results of internal 

audit work 

 Anti-fraud and Corruption policy & Strategy  

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Information governance policies and procedures 

 Regular financial and performance reporting to the 
Executive 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Quarterly strategic performance and financial 
monitoring reports 

 Monthly budget monitoring reports 

 Cyber risk training (E-learning) 

 IT & Social media Policies  
 

44



Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability  

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

 Implementing good 
practice in 
transparency 

 Implementing good 
practices in 
reporting 

 Assurance and 
effective 
accountability  

 Maintain an effective scrutiny function which encourages 
constructive challenge 

 Maintain an effective Audit and Resources Committee 
independent of the Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees 

 Publish all Committee reports on our website unless there is a 
statutory reason not to do so 

 Maintain and regularly communicate whistleblowing policies 

 Ensure performance information is prepared on a consistent and 
timely basis 

 Ensure Corporate Governance Group meet regularly and monitor 
compliance with the Governance Framework and actions detailed 
within AGS 

 Maintain an effective Internal Audit function which conforms to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 

 Welcome peer reviews and inspection from regulatory bodies 
and implement recommendations 

 Produce regular financial and budget monitoring reports for 
members reporting on performance, value for money and 
stewardship of resources 

 Produce regular budget manager reports to ensure senior 
managers own results 

 
 
 
 

 

 Information Governance Policies and Procedures 

 Scrutiny Committee 

 Regular provision of information to Audit and 
Resources Committee 

 Corporate Performance Framework 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Chief Internal Auditor annual report 

 Individual audit reports 

 Regular progress reports on results of internal audit 
work 

 Internal audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 

 Monthly financial and performance reporting 

 Quarterly Executive Summary Reports  

 Communications Strategy 

 Accessibility statement 
 

 

 

 

45



Principle G (continued) – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Supporting Principles To achieve this, the Council will: This is evidenced by: 

  

 The Council makes sure members of the public have access to 

information about the workings of the Council. It makes clear 

what information is routinely published through its Freedom of 

Information Publication Scheme and responds promptly to 

requests for information.  

 Maintain compliance with the local government transparency 

code and publish all required information in a timely manner 

 Publish an Annual Report and Statement of Accounts giving 

information on the authority’s vision, strategy, performance, 

future plans and financial statements. 

 Maintain an internal audit function with a risk-based audit plan, 

designed to test regularly that the Council’s policies and 

processes operate in practice and that the Council complies with 

legislation and good practice. 

 Compliance and transparency with data protection legislation 

 
 

 

 

 Freedom of Information requests, Environmental 

Information Requests and Subject Access Requests 

 Publication Scheme 

 Transparency Code 

 Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 

 Annual Audit plan 

 GDPR privacy policies, Record of Processing Activity 
(ROPA), Retention Schedule, data sharing 
agreements 
 
 

 

46



 
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

23 November 2021 

INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING STATEMENT  

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2021 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 

Report of the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting)  

 

Recommendations  

It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee considers the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the second quarter of 2021/22. 

 

 

Summary 
 

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 was approved by this Committee on 9 
March 2021. Progress made against the plan for quarter 2 is now reported 
(Appendix A). 

 Progress made on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix B. 

 

Statutory Powers 
S.151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 
 
 

 

 

47

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s risk 
management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, work 
effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Introduction 

2. The Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 was approved by this Committee on 9 March 
2021. Performance against the Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 will be reported 
to Members of the Committee periodically throughout the year as per the 
Internal Audit Charter which was approved by this Committee on 9 March 2021. 
This report is the second monitoring statement for the current financial year 
(2021/22) and outlines audit activity for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 September 
2021, as summarised in appendices A and B. 

Resources 

3. From 1 April 2021 the in-house Internal Audit Team comprises a Head of 
Internal Audit (currently vacant), one full-time Senior Internal Auditor (currently 
Acting Chief Internal Auditor), one full-time Auditor and one Audit Apprentice.  

4. The Internal Audit Apprentice, having completed the Level 4 apprenticeship 
scheme early in 2021/22, has commenced the Level 7 Internal Audit 
apprenticeship scheme. This will take approximately 3 years to complete and 
will result in the achievement of the professional qualification, Chartered 
Internal Auditor CIIA due to be completed by September/October 2024. 

5. The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 requires 584 days, of which 491 will be 
resourced in house. The shortfall in resource of 93 days is being met by 
appointment of a casual auditor at a cost of £10,500.  

Internal Audit Activity  

6. Appendix A shows an analysis of planned days against actual days for the 
period 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021. The Plan remains fluid and flexible 
and continues to be closely monitored by the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting). 
Further revisions may be necessary over the coming months and any revisions 
to the Plan will be agreed with this Committee.   

7. During the second quarter the following reviews carried forward from 2020/21 
continued and will be subject to comment in a later Monitoring Report: 

 Asset Management 

 Corporate Governance  

 Treasury Management 

48



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Accounts Receivable 

 Payroll 

8. An interim review of partnership arrangements has been completed and further 
work identified which will be addressed by the Governance Executive with 
support from the Strategic Planning Manager in 2022/23. This will include the 
development of the Partnership Register and clear governance arrangements.  

9. During the second quarter the following reviews from the 2021/22 Annual 
Internal Audit Plan commenced which continue into the third quarter and will be 
subject to comment in a later monitoring report: 

 Fleet Management 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets  

 Strategic Planning  

 Construction & Maintenance  

 Cash Collection & Banking 

10. Five of the audits in progress are at draft and will be subject to comment at a 
later monitoring report. 

11. During the quarter Internal Audit continued working with officers responsible for 
the development of new systems and processes and, as reported to this 
Committee previously, is responsible for reviewing and commenting upon 
systems of internal control prior to going live.  

Audit Recommendations 

12. Appendix B provides details of the recommendations that remain outstanding 
from the 2019/20 and 2020/21 internal audits, along with the level of assurance 
given.  It will develop over the coming year as 2021/22 audit work is completed. 
 

13. At the time of writing this report 4 grade 2 (high risk) recommendations remain 
outstanding from 2020/21 and 10 grade 2 (high risk) recommendations from 
2019/20. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) is currently satisfied that 
appropriate action is being taken to address the outstanding recommendations 
and considers that there are no matters that require escalation or further input 
from this Committee. 

 
14. 2020/21 Audit Reviews: 

 Local Taxation (Follow up review) (1 recommendation) - the 2019/20 
review concluded that there was an adequate system of control but that 
the compliance against controls was limited. 26 recommendations were 
made, 4 of which were graded as priority 2 (high risk). All 
recommendations were followed up and eight recommendations have 
been restated, two of which are graded as priority 2 (high risk) and one 

49



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

further recommendation has been made. It should be noted that the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has meant the payment of business 
support grants has taken priority and unfortunately staff have not been 
able to give the audit recommendations their full attention. An update has 
been provided to Internal Audit by the Senior Revenues Specialist which 
confirms that one of the priority 2 recommendations has been 
implemented and the second, regarding consideration to be given to 
alternative means of collecting money from long term debtors is in the 
process of being implemented; recovery methods are dictated by 
legislation but the Revenues Team will be taking part in a multi-agency 
risk management meeting which helps vulnerable residents who have 
multiple debts.  

 Building Control Partnership – (1 recommendation) The review concluded 
that there was an adequate framework of control in place, however there 
is limited compliance with this framework of control. Although a 
Partnership Agreement between Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Southampton City Council is in place, the signing of a Deed of Variation to 
this agreement was placed on hold pending a complete review of the 
Partnership Agreement. As such, compliance to these ‘control’ documents 
is weak. Current Building Control processes and procedures between the 
Councils are not wholly reflected in the Partnership Agreement. As a 
result, 9 recommendations were made, one of these was assessed as 
priority 2 (high risk) regarding the need to draft a new Building Control 
agreement immediately that reflects current practice, processes and 
procedures. Discussion between parties have taken place and a draft 
amended Partnership Agreement is under review by each authority. 
Adoption of the Agreement is anticipated this autumn.  

 Commercial Rents Follow Up Review – (2 recommendations) Our last full 
review of Commercial Rents was carried out in 2019/20. That review 
concluded that there was a limited system of control and that the 
compliance against controls was also limited. The 25 recommendations 
arising from that review were followed up and it was found that 10 have 
been fully implemented, 3 have been partially implemented and 11 are still 
outstanding. 1 recommendation has not been restated as the risk has 
been accepted and 1 new recommendation has been made. The 
outstanding 2 high risk recommendations are around storage and 
management of documents and electronic information, and maintaining 
adequate audit trails. The risks around data management were found to 
be managed as far as possible with the current system, and a review of 
development work is being undertaken. Work to improve storage and 
management of documents has commenced. 

 
 
2019/20 Audit Reviews: 

 Bank Reconciliation (2 recommendations) – these recommendations are 
regarding the need to produce a balanced reconciliation. Process notes 
are being drawn up alongside the CMO team, with detailed reconciliation 
work ongoing to achieve a balanced position. 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets (Land and Property) (1 recommendation) – 
this recommendation is to reconcile the Computerised Land and Property 

50



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

System (CLP) with the Finance Asset Register as part of the development 
of a new Asset Management System. This has been delayed due to the 
new system not yet having been implemented; however, work is 
progressing to ensure data management is optimal for the reconciliation of 
both systems annually.  

 Planning Fees (6 recommendations) – A plan for implementation of audit 
recommendations has been drafted and implementation dates are being 
agreed. Four of the original 10 grade 2 (high risk) recommendations have 
been implemented to date. Of the remaining 6 recommendations, 4 are 
unable to resolve without a wider digital strategy input due to a wider 
corporate impact that expands beyond a Planning Fees issue that the 
Development Management service can resolve. The timetable for 
addressing these will need to be agreed as part of a wider review of the 
Digital Strategy. The final two recommendations are subject to ongoing 
work. Given the time that has elapsed since the audit was completed, it 
has been agreed that the Internal Audit Team will carry out a follow up 
review of the high-risk recommendations during Quarter 3 to assess the 
situation and the level of risk exposure. 

 Event Management (1 recommendation) – three grade 2 
recommendations were originally made regarding a review by Legal 
Services of the published terms and conditions of using Council owned 
land to host events and a review of use of Salesforce Discussion Groups 
as a way of administering events. Two of the three have been 
implemented and it is planned that the remaining outstanding 
recommendation will be fully implemented by the end of Autumn 2021.  

 
15. Corporate Leadership Board has reviewed the positions with the 

implementation of audit recommendations and where necessary any 
outstanding non-responses to audit reports/recommendations are being 
pursued; or Corporate Leadership Board are prepared to accept the risk in the 
short term when considered against other priority works across the Council. 
 

Financial Implications 

16. There are no significant financial implications arising from this report. The 
report is intended to report on progress made against the Annual Internal Audit 
Plan 2021/22. 

Risk Assessment 

17. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) must establish and maintain a system to 
monitor the disposition of audit results communicated to management. By not 
monitoring the progress made with the implementation of audit 
recommendations, the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) would be failing to meet 
requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Internal Audit 
Charter. This report provides Management and this Committee with details of 
the progress made.  

51



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

18. The Internal Audit team has been working remotely since 17 March 2020. The 
team are now able to access Eastleigh House where necessary to review 
physical records.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

19. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 

Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

20. There are no proposals within this report to assess with regard to climate 
change and environmental implications. 

Conclusion 

21. The planned time and actual time are closely monitored to ensure where 
possible any variation is kept to a minimum. However, variations do occur and 
where necessary any impact on the plan is reported to this Committee.   

22. Work to complete the Audit Plan 2021/22 is being closely monitored against the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as work to support the response and recovery 
is continuing. 

 

LISA SMY 
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR (ACTING)   

 
Date: 22 October 2021 
Contact Officer: Lisa Smy  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

 Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 
 
 

52



Appendix A 
 

 
 
Internal Audit Monitoring Statement - Quarter 2 2021/22

2021/22 Total   

Plan Days*

Q2 Planned days Q2 Actual Days Variance

Direct time (attributable to a specific audit review)

Major Systems 130 15.00 23.57 8.57

Corporate Governance 26 1.00 1.84 0.84

Corporate Support 109 17.50 19.54 2.04

Corporate Systems 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Finance & Housing Programme 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Assets & Project Delivery 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Governance 35 6.75 1.35 -5.40

Customer Care 15 10.00 5.07 -4.93

Organisational Development 30 3.00 5.14 2.14

Strategic Development 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Environment 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Health & Wellbeing 8 4.00 0.00 -4.00

Planning & Economy 15 15.00 0.00 -15.00

Neighbourhood Services 30 23.00 24.42 1.42

Contract Audit 6 0.00 0.00 0.00

Members Scrutiny 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Investigations 20 0.00 11.25 11.25

Prior Year Audit Completion 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Help & Advice 20 8.05 12.20 4.15

Covid-19 - Response and Support 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total direct days 584 103.30 104.38 1.08

Indirect time (not attributable to a specific audit review) 

Annual Leave/Sick leave/Other leave 38.75 36.57 -2.18

Training/Management/Development/Admin 52.95 54.05 1.10

Total in-direct days 243 91.70 90.62 -1.08

Grand Total 827 195.00 195.00 0.00

* as approved by Audit & Resources Committee 9th March 2021 

53



Appendix B 
 
 

 

Progress of the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations - 2021/22 Quarter 2

Audit Title A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
In

d
e

x*
 

H
ig

h
 (

H
),

 M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
),

 

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t

D
at

e
 o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e
 o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

(g
ra

d
e

d
 1

-4
)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 (

cr
it

ic
al

 

ri
sk

) 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
- 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

ct
io

n
**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 (

h
ig

h
 r

is
k)

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s*

*
*

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

A
gr

e
ed

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

2021/22 Internal Audit Reviews:

Accounting for Fixed Assets  H At draft

Cash Collection & Banking H In progress

Recruitment & Selection M Paused; the OD executive area is carrying out a corporate review and once completed then the audit can commence

Fleet Management H At draft

Strategic Planning H At draft

Construction & Maintenance M At draft

2020/21 Internal Audit Reviews:

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H In progress 

Asset Management H In progress 

Petty Cash L Limited Limited 28.10.2020 28.10.2020 9 0 - 2 2 0 n/a

Car and other Travel Loans L Limited Adequate 15.09.2020 15.09.2020 13 0 - 3 3 0 n/a

Healthworks L Adequate Adequate 28.08.2020 04.09.2020 12 0 - 2 2 0 n/a

Building Control Partnership  M Adequate Limited 18.06.2021 18.06.2021 9 0 - 1 0 1 31.10.21

Corporate Governance 2019/20 & 2020/21 H In progress 

Treasury Management H In progress 

Budgetary Control H Adequate Adequate 26.04.2021 26.04.2021 1 0 - 0 - 0 n/a

Climate & Environmental Emergency Strategy H Adequate Adequate 08.02.2021 08.02.2021 9 0 - 0 - 0 n/a

Payroll H At draft

Accounts Payable H Adequate Adequate 21.05.2021 21.05.2021 12 0 - 2 2 0 27.08.21

Commercial Rents Follow Up Review H n/a n/a 06.06.2021 06.06.2021 5 0 - 2 0 2 31.01.22

IT Healthcheck M Adequate Substantial 24.02.2021 24.02.2021 2 0 - 0 - 0 n/a

Co-Wheels (Car Club) - Risk & Research Review L n/a n/a 01.12.2020 n/a n/a - - - - - n/a

Local Taxation Follow Up Review H n/a n/a 07.12.2020

Due 

21.04.2021 9 0 - 2 1 1 30.10.21

Taxation: VAT, CIS and IR35 Follow Up Review H n/a n/a 17.12.2020 21.12.2020 5 - - - - - n/a

Total 2020/21 86 0 0 14 10 4

Grading

54



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Audit Title A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
In

d
e

x*
 

H
ig

h
 (

H
),

 M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
),

 

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t

D
at

e
 o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e
 o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

(g
ra

d
e

d
 1

-4
)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 (

cr
it

ic
al

 

ri
sk

) 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
 

** N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 (

h
ig

h
 r

is
k)

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 2
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e

 1
 o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

A
gr

e
ed

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

Bank Reconciliation H Limited Limited 18.05.20 16.06.20 2 0 - 2 0 2 31.03.22

Accounting for Fixed Assets - Land & Property H Limited Limited 02.06.20 27.07.20 7 0 - 1 0 1 31.03.22

Event Management M Limited Limited 22.08.19 04.05.20 7 0 - 3 2 1 30.09.21

Planning Fees M Limited Limited 11.06.20 20.07.20 32 0 - 10 4 6 TBC

One Horton Heath H Limited Limited 15.01.21 21.12.20 24 0 - 8 8 0 n/a

Total 2019/20 72 0 0 24 14 10

158 0 0 38 24 14Total (overall)

Grading

2019/20 Internal Audit Reviews with outstanding recommendations

* Risk index is taken from the Annual Plan as approved by the Audit & Resources Committee. Risk based strategy forms appendix 1 of the Annual Plan and provides further explanation of the process.

** Grade 1 (Definition): Critical risk - A major or serious control weakness as a key control is either missing, failing or not being adhered to. Exposes the Council to a critical risk.

*** Grade 2 (Definition): High risk - A significant control weakness as key control is either missing, not working or not being adhered to. Exposes the Council to a high risk.

55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

23 November 2021 

CABINET 

9 December 2021 

Corporate Fees and Charges 

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager  

 

Recommendation(s) 

For Audit and Resources Committee: 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee note the proposed fees 
and charges and make any necessary recommendations to Cabinet. 

For Cabinet: 

It is recommended that Cabinet approve all proposed fees and charges in 
Appendices A to I to come into effect on the dates outlined in the report.  
 

Summary 
 
Fees and Charges for Council services are reviewed on a regular basis.  In accordance 
with the Budget Plan, fees and charges levied by the Council are reviewed annually with 
the intention of any changes being introduced, where possible, with effect from January 
2022.  This report contains the fees and charges for services directly overseen by Cabinet.  
The increases in this report will be budgeted to achieve an additional yield of £168,000 in 
2022/2023 which is in line with the Medium-Term Financial Plan.   
 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 

Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 

57

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to a range of Corporate Plan objectives and the Council’s 
principle of operating in a business-like, commercially focussed way.  The 
report reflects the Council’s approach to minimise the levels of Council Tax 
while seeking to cover Council costs from fees and charges from discretionary 
services.   

2. The proposals in many areas promote health and wellbeing by setting 
discounted rates for community or non-commercial groups; they also help 
tackle deprivation by providing discounted rates for individuals experiencing 
socio-economic deprivation.  The report reflects the Council’s Climate and 
Environmental Emergency and Excellent Environment objectives in applying 
the highest possible penalties for environmental offences such as littering, 
flyposting and graffiti. 

Introduction 

3. The purpose of this report is to outline proposed changes to corporate fees 
and charges levied for services by the Council and approved by Cabinet.  A 
minimum increase in yield of 3.0% (in-line with the previously approved policy) 
for all fees and charges should be implemented where possible, from January 
2022. 

4. Service Managers consider their fees and charges in the context of service 
development, in addition to recognising the Council’s policy to generate 
additional funds by way of maximising the yield from all income sources.   

5. There are other fees and charges within the Council’s Budget, to which an 
inflationary increase cannot apply.  These income streams are mainly grants, 
nationally set fees or related to contracts and therefore cannot be increased to 
raise further income. 

6. COVID-19 has had a significant impact on some services that generate fee 
income, leading to lower than usual yields in 2020/21 and 2021/22. Details are 
shown for each area where this is expected to continue in 2022/23. In many 
areas there is a raised level of uncertainty. The Council’s usual financial 
monitoring processes will track actual performance and any budget 
adjustments will be reported to Cabinet and incorporated into the Medium-
Term Financial Plan in February 2022. 

Budget Devolution 

6. Councillors should note that following Cabinet approval in September 2012, 
the following services are devolved to Local Area Committees and therefore 
the fees and charges for these areas are now set by those Committees: 
 

 Car Parking; 

 Cemeteries; 

 Itchen Valley and Lakeside Country Parks; 

58



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Outdoor sports facilities; 

 Allotments. 
 

7. Local Area Committees have the discretion to set fees for services devolved 
to their Areas, subject to compliance with the corporate target to generate an 
additional minimum yield from fees and charges of 3.0%. 

8. Car parking income has significantly reduced, initially due to COVID-19 
restrictions and the fall in office-working in town centres; however, there is 
concern that consumer habits have changed long term. This is under review 
by the Parking Working Group  

Services Managed Directly by Cabinet 

9. There are a number of services that are managed by Cabinet and these 
services are listed below with their respective appendix references. 

 

Appendix Description 

A Arts and Culture  

B Neighbourhood Services 

C Health and Wellbeing 

D Housing and Development 

E Environment 

F Economic Development 

G Asset Management  

H Strategic Planning, and Governance 

I Local Operations 

 

Arts and Culture (Appendix A) 

8. Arts and Culture staff have reviewed the fees and charges and the proposed 
increases are in line with other market providers.  All other fees and charges 
have been amended based on what is considered an acceptable level for the 
client base.  The community meeting room charge has not increased as the 
area has been significantly impacted by the Covid pandemic and a 0% 
increase will be implemented to entice users back into the building. It is also 
noted that discounts and incentives are available to encourage new 
customers or incentivise repeat bookings across the service.  

59



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Neighbourhood Services (Appendix B) 

 
9. Bulky Waste: The model for Bulky Waste Services has been updated for 

2022. There will now be a charge for each item collected rather than a one-off 
cost for the first 8 items. For customers on means tested benefits, the cost is 
£20 for first item and £10 for each additional item.  

10. Bins not put for collection or contaminated:  To encourage residents not to 
contaminate bins and improve recycling rates, the charges for collection of 
missed bins not put out for collection by residents and collection of 
contaminated bins have been increased by £2.00.  

11. Garden Waste Service: The Executive Head of Neighbourhood Services has 
reviewed the fees and charges for this service and recommends that the 
various Garden Waste Service charges are slightly increased. For example, a 
standard 50-week service for a new user will increase by 3.8% (£1.50) to 
£41.00. The increase would generate an additional income of £24,680. 

12. Trade waste: Increases of individual contract charges do vary across the 
existing customer base dependent on the value of the contract and the 
existing yield which the contract delivers. In total, trade waste charges are 
expected to provide an additional increased yield of £39,000 which equates to 
5%. 

13. Tree Nursery: It is recommended not to change the fees being introduced in 
relation to the tree sponsorship programme. 

14. Car parking income has significantly reduced due to COVID-19 restrictions 
and changes to commuting; the corporate yield target has not been applied to 
this area, and Local Area Committees are therefore not expected to meet any 
shortfall. To support the recovery of local district centres no increases are 
proposed for off-street and on-street pay and display parking tariff levels. 
Residential Parking permits will continue to increase as per the agreed 
transition towards the Hampshire County Council minimum fee levels.  
 

15. Tables and Chairs on the highway licences were considerably higher (£235) in 
previous years and reduced for 2021 to encourage activity in town and local 
centres. The charge is proposed to be increased to £100 to reflect the costs of 
administration. This is now in line with Pavement licences (capped at £100). 
 

16. All other proposed fees and charges in Neighbourhood Services are in line 
with the recommended level of 3.0%.  
 

Health and Wellbeing (Appendix C) 

17. Places Leisure Eastleigh: The operator (Places for People) and Council staff 
have reviewed the charges for January 2022 onwards taking into account 
usage trends, operational costs, recent investments, competitors’ pricing 
policies and the customer’s ability to pay.   

60



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
18. Proposals were presented to the Places Leisure Eastleigh Consultative Group 

on the 5 October 2021 and proposed charges were approved by this Group 
for consideration by Cabinet. 

 
19. The fees and charges at The Hub leisure centre at Bishopstoke Road playing 

fields will increase by the corporate yield target of 3% from 1 April 2022.   
 

20. Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licensing fees are not increased during 
the initial 5-year cycle, which will end in 2023. The current fee is relatively 
high in comparison to other local authorities in the area. The remainder of the 
housing fees have been increased to reflect the 3% yield target.  
 

21. Caravan site licensing charges are recommended to increase by the 3% yield 
target. It is to be noted that there is a new charge that commenced in July 
2021 for ‘Cost of Inclusion on fit & proper person register’. 

 
Housing and Development (Appendix D) 

22. The overall fees increase for Development Management will generate an 
additional 3% income. It is difficult to predict with great accuracy the resultant 
income in the light of a recovering economy following the impact of the 
lockdown and Covid 19. In recognition of the complexity and value of the pre-
application process the greatest increase in fee, and resultant income, is 
focused within this area. 
 

23. A modest increase in Land Charges is proposed to cover increased costs, 
primarily associated with services provided by Hampshire County Council. 
Overall income for this service has reduced as “non-fee earning” personal 
searches are becoming increasingly common; this will be addressed in the 
budget setting process for 2022/23.  

 
Environment (Appendix E) 

24. Many of the Environmental charges are set nationally through legislation. 
Other fees and charges have generally been increased by 3% and it is 
anticipated that in total the service will generate an income yield increase in 
line with the corporate target. 
 

25. Animal Welfare and Collection of Stray Dogs: Charges have been amended in 
line with yield target. 
 

26. Due to the impact of Covid 19 and the complexity of the Licenses fees and 
charges, the Administration Committee will be approving the 2022/23 charges 
at the next committee on 22 November 2021. Due to this, Licenses (for 
Pleasure Boats, Hackney Carriages, and miscellaneous licences) are not 
included in this report.  

27. Councillors will be aware that the administration of the Taxi and Hackney 
Carriage Licensing Service transferred to Southampton City Council in 2016.  

61



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

The service is a ring-fenced service and is required to break-even.   
 
 

Economic Development (Appendix F) 

28. The Sorting Office has moved to a new location therefore creating some new 
charges related to the rent of the space. For other charges relating to the 
economy i.e., Environmental Health training courses and various vendor 
licences, it has been agreed by the Head of Economy and Business to 
increase the price by 3.0% and it is anticipated that in total the service will 
generate an income yield in line with the corporate target. 
 

 

Asset Management (Appendix G) 

29. The Asset Management Service fees have been increased by 3% to match 
the required yield. These prices are still deemed to be reasonable in the 
market. The fee for administration on garage lettings has been increased by 
50% to reflect the actual cost of this work. 
 

30. Fees for chargeable Legal work are capped to only cover costs, it is being 
increased by the corporate yield target of 3%. 
 

31. Eastleigh House has increased its fees and charges in line with the corporate        
yield target of 3%. 
 
 

Governance and Strategic Planning (Appendix H)  

32. Fees for these areas include charges for paper copies of the Local Plan, 
roundabout sponsorship, and Elections. Roundabout sponsorship fees will not 
be increased, with the increase in yield being achieved through efforts to 
obtain new sponsorship. 
 

Local Operations (Appendix I) 

33. The Local Response Team currently undertake the deployment of the Speed 
Limit Reminders (SLR)\Speed Indicator Device (SID) for the Local Area 
Committees.  No change is proposed to the £75 fee, with increased yield 
expected from greater demand.  
 

Risk Assessment 

34. There is always a risk that proposed charges will not yield the overall 
anticipated 3.0% additional income target for the Budget.  The impact of 
changing the fees and charges needs to be balanced against the impact on 
demand, giving rise to changes in overall yield; this will be monitored closely 
during the quarterly Corporate Performance processes throughout the year. 

 

62



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Financial Implications  
 

35. The table below shows the estimated income yield increases across services 
for 2022/23 as a result of the proposed fees and charges. Further work on 
future income levels for services will be completed as part of the upcoming 
budget process which will review all income levels. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

36. Any service equality and diversity implications will have been considered by 
functional leads as part of their Service Planning processes.  There are no 
specific equality and diversity issues associated with this report which simply 
presents a summary of Cabinet-controlled fees and charges for the Council. 
 

Climate and Environmental Emergency implications 

37. Climate and Environmental Emergency implications are predominantly 
managed through the service planning process. Changes to Fees and 
Charges take into account the corporate policy as well as the Council’s 
objective to tackle the Climate Change and Environment Emergency e.g., fees 
or charges for contaminated bins, graffiti, and trees grown at the Council’s 
tree nursery. 

 

Conclusion 

30. The Council undertakes an annual review of all fees and charges.  Where 
possible, the review reflects the Council’s Budget requirement to achieve an 
increase of 3.0% in yield.  The above increases will be budgeted to achieve 

Arts and Culture £5,611 

Neighbourhood Services £56,390 

Health and Wellbeing £769 

Housing and Development £36,705 

Environment £1,534 

Economy £3,445 

Asset Management  £1,655 

Local Response (Parking) £62,523 

Total £168,632 

63



   

 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

an additional yield of £168,000 in 2022/2023.  Where possible, fees and 
charges will be increased with effect from January 2022.   

 

DICCON BRIGHT 

Strategic Planning Manager  

 
Date: 15 October 2020 
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright  
Tel No: 023 8068 8436 
e-mail: Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk  
Appendices Attached: 9 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 
 

64



ARTS AND CULTURE Appendix A

Theatres: The Point & The Berry Theatre From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Commercial

Monday – Sunday 11 hours per day 1160.00 3.11% 35.00

Weekly hire rate – midday on 1st day to midnight on 7th day Max 60 

hours access
7000.00 2.94% 200.00

Additional hourly rate 155.00 3.33% 5.00

Additional hourly rate pre 9am post-midnight 225.00 2.27% 5.00

Auditorium: Conference hire up to 4 hours 500.00 3.09% 15.00

Auditorium Conference hire up to 8 hours 850.00 3.66% 30.00

Theatre From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

COMMUNITY

Monday – Sunday 11 hours per day 835.00 2.45% 20.00

Weekly hire rate – midday on 1st day to midnight on 7th day Max 60 

hours access
4550.00 2.25% 100.00

Additional hourly rate 150.00 3.45% 5.00

Additional hourly rate pre 9am post-midnight 215.00 2.38% 5.00

Auditorium: Conference hire up to 4 hours 375.00 2.74% 10.00

Auditorium Conference hire up to 8 hours 585.00 2.63% 15.00

Dance Studio – all charges are per hour or part hour From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

COMMERCIAL

Per hour 42.00 2.44% 1.00

Per hour (Series Booking) 40.00 2.56% 1.00

Per 3 hour session 105.00 2.94% 3.00

All day session 10am – 5pm 190.00 3.83% 7.00

Dance Studio – all charges are per hour or part hour From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

COMMUNITY

Per hour 31.00 3.33% 1.00

Per hour (Series Booking) 29.00 3.57% 1.00

Per 3 hour session 73.00 2.82% 2.00

All day session 10am – 5pm 125.00 2.46% 3.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Irving Room/Wilde Room 16.00 0.00% 0.00

Studio Theatre 30.00 0.00% 0.00

Studio Theatre for Performance 40.00 0.00% 0.00

Conference Room 23.00 0.00% 0.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Irving Room/Wilde Room 24.00 4.35% 1.00

Studio Theatre 41.00 2.50% 1.00

Studio Theatre for Performance 51.00 2.00% 1.00

Conference Room 29.00 3.57% 1.00

Creation Centre – Rate From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Community

Creation Space – ½ Day 175.00 2.94% 5.00

Creation Space – Day 325.00 3.17% 10.00

Creation Space – Day including evening 485.00 3.19% 15.00

Creation Space – Weekly 2750.00 3.77% 100.00

Atrium – Hourly 24.00 2.13% 0.50

Creation Centre – Rate From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Commercial

Creation Space – ½ Day 290.00 3.57% 10.00

Creation Space – Day 465.00 3.33% 15.00

Creation Space – Day including evening 695.00 2.96% 20.00

Creation Space – Weekly 4120.00 3.00% 120.00

Atrium – Hourly 27.00

Foyer From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Community – Evening 210.00 2.44% 5.00

Standard - Evening 270.00 3.85% 10.00

The Point Theatre and The Berry and Meeting Rooms Charges 

Meeting Rooms - Hourly Rate - Community 

Meeting Rooms – Hourly Rate – Commercial

65



Commercial Events From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Starting from

Large Wedding: Peak 3200.00 4.92% 150.00

Large Wedding: Off Peak 1900.00 5.56% 100.00

Small Wedding: Peak 1600.00 3.23% 50.00

Small Wedding: Off Peak 1100.00 4.76% 50.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Technician 16.50 3.13% 0.50

4 hour Pre-rig with 2 technicians 155.00 3.33% 5.00

5 hour basic plotting with 2 technicians 155.00 3.33% 5.00

Show day rehearsal and 1 show 410.00 2.50% 10.00

Radio Mic 1 day 10.50 5.00% 0.50

Radio mic 2 days 15.50 3.33% 0.50

Radio Mic weekly 56.50 2.73% 1.50

Mics (wired) 5.00 11.11% 0.50

Mics 2 day 7.00 7.69% 0.50

Mics week 20.00 11.11% 2.00

Drum kit 18.00 5.88% 1.00

Drum kit 2 day 31.00 3.33% 1.00

Drum kit week 80.00 6.67% 5.00

Metro deck blocks 7.50 7.14% 0.50

Blocks 2 day 10.50 5.00% 0.50

Blocks week 31.00 3.33% 1.00

Hazer 21.00 5.00% 1.00

Hazer 2 days 36.00 2.86% 1.00

Hazer week 85.00 6.25% 5.00

Followspot 31.00 3.33% 1.00

Followspot 2 days 46.50 3.33% 1.50

Followspot week 150.00 3.45% 5.00

Projector 62.00 3.33% 2.00

Projector 2 day 98.00 3.16% 3.00

Projector weekly 258.00 3.20% 8.00

Projection screen  Small 15.50 3.33% 0.50

Projection screen  Large 26.00 4.00% 1.00

Projection screen 2 day  Small 26.00 4.00% 1.00

Projection screen 2 day  Large 41.00 2.50% 1.00

Projection screen week 82.00 2.50% 2.00

Small PA 1 Day Hire 62.00 3.33% 2.00

Small PA Weekend Hire 77.00 2.67% 2.00

Med PA 1 Day Hire 87.00 2.35% 2.00

Med PA Weekend Hire 113.00 2.73% 3.00

Large PA 1 Day Hire 155.00 3.33% 5.00

Large PA Weekend Hire 160.00 3.23% 5.00

MAC Book Pro 1 Day 20.00 0.00% 0.00

MAC Book Pro 2 Day 40.00 0.00% 0.00

MAC Book Pro Week 120.00 0.00% 0.00

Techpro Radio and Comms pack 6 radios and Belt pack 1 Day 21.00 5.00% 1.00

Infrared Conference mics x 20 1 Day 88.00 3.53% 3.00

Infrared Conference mics x 40 1 Day 155.00 3.33% 5.00

Incentives & Discounts

Discounts/incentives are available to encourage new customers or incentivise repeat bookings 

Performance Tickets

Creation Centre 

Studio Series Classes

Deposit

Cancellations

8 months notice

6 months notice

Less than 6 months notice

 Technical Charges

Hire of the Creation Space includes the use of the ground floor 

Minimum booking of 10 sessions.  Studio booking charges include 

A non-returnable deposit of 10% of the total hire charge is payable at the time of booking.

66



Neighbourhood Services Apendix B

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

First Item 30.00 N/A N/A

Each additional item 15.00 N/A N/A

First Item - concession 20.00 N/A N/A

Each additional item - concession 10.00 N/A N/A

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Trade Waste Charges Various N/A N/A

From 1/04/22 £ Change % Change £

Garden waste service (first  bin) April – March (50 wks) 41.00 3.80% 1.50

Garden waste service (first bin) April – March (50 wks) Concession 32.00 1.59% 0.50

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) April – March (50 

wks)
38.00 4.11% 1.50

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) April – March (50 

wks) Concession
26.50 1.92% 0.50

Garden waste service (first  bin) Oct – March (25 wks) 32.00 4.92% 1.50

Garden waste service (first bin) Oct – March (25 wks) Concession 27.00 1.89% 0.50

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) Oct – March (25 

wks)
31.00 5.08% 1.50

Garden waste service (after first bin price per bin) Oct – March (25 

wks) Concession
25.50 2.00% 0.50

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

140/240 litre 20.00 11.11% 2.00

1100 litre 40.00 5.26% 2.00

Additional black waste sacks not contained within the  1100 litre bin – 

communal properties
4.00 8.11% 0.30

Replacement of residual (black) wheeled bins should the bin go 

missing or be damaged
26.00 4.00% 1.00

Delivery Bins (Companies and New Developments) 29.00 16.00% 4.00

Up to 1-8 set then £21.50 thereafter for each 8 set 25.00 13.64% 3.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Certificate of Compliance 49.00 0.00% 0.00

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire – Retest 21.00 0.00% 0.00

Car Loan Inspections 84.00 0.00% 0.00

Streetscene

Abandoned Shopping Trolleys From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

(per trolley) 

Collect & Return (By Prior Agreement) 23.50 0.00% 0.00

Pest Control Service (all Inc. VAT) From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Domestic Premises

General Advice Visit – domestic property 30.00 3.45% 1.00

Rats – domestic property (up to 4 visits) 85.00 3.03% 2.50

Mice – domestic property (up to 4 visits) 85.00 3.03% 2.50

Rats – domestic property (additional visits/visit) 23.00 4.55% 1.00

Mice – domestic property (additional visits/visit) 23.00 4.55% 1.00

Rat/mice treatment for people on defined benefits. Consession 13.50 3.85% 0.50

Wasp Treatment – domestic property (1
st
 nest) 53.00 3.92% 2.00

Wasp nest (additional nests) 22.00 2.33% 0.50

Flea Treatment – per hour, up to 5 bedrooms. 124.00 2.48% 3.00

Flea Treatment – per hour, after 1
st
 hour. 71.00 2.90% 2.00

Insects – for 1
st
 hour. 125.00 2.46% 3.00

Insects – per hour, after 1
st
 hour 71.00 2.90% 2.00

Any pest visit where the PCO is unable to gain access as agreed 

(additional cost to treatment)
14.00 3.70% 0.50

Pest Control Service (all inc. VAT) From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Business Premises 

Rodent control - business premises under contract To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rodent control - business premises under contract – additional visit To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rats & Mice - business premises not under contract – general advice 

visit
To be quoted on site by site basis by PCO N/A N/A

Rats & Mice - business premises not under contract – hourly rate 

after initial visit
92.00 5.75% 5.00

Wasps (1
st
 nest) 59.00 3.51% 2.00

Wasps (each additional nest) 25.00 2.04% 0.50

Fleas for 1
st
 hour 135.00 2.66% 3.50

Fleas – per hour after 1
st
 hour 76.00 2.70% 2.00

Insects for 1
st
 hour 135.00 2.66% 3.50

Insects – per hour after 1
st
 hour 76.00 2.70% 2.00

Bulky items

Trade Waste

Special Collections

Collection of missed bins not put out for collection by residents  

and collection of contaminated bins

Vehicle Workshop

67



STREETSCENE DESCRIPTION OF OFFENCE
WHO CAN ISSUE 

FPNs
Amount £

Section & Legislation

s.6(1) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 Nuisance parking
Local authority 

authorised officers

Amount fixed at 

£100

s.2A(1) Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 Abandoning a vehicle
Local authority 

authorised officers

Amount fixed at 

£200

s.88(1) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Litter

Litter authority 

authorised officers, 

including persons not 

directly employed by the 

authority (see paragraph 

13 below); Policy 

Community Support 

Officers and other 

persons accredited 

under Community 

Accreditation Schemes 

under the Police Reform 

Act 2002

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £50 -

£80). Default 

£80

s.94A(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990
Street litter control notices and litter clearing 

notices

Principal litter authority 

authorised officers

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £75 -

£100). Default 

£100

Schedule 3A, para. 7(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990
Unauthorised distribution of literature on 

designated land

Principal litter authority 

authorised officers, 

including persons not 

directly employed by the 

authority (see paragraph 

13 below)

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £50 - 

£80). Default 

£80

s.43 Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 Graffiti and fly-posting

Local authority 

authorised officers, 

including persons not 

directly employed by the 

authority (see paragraph 

13 below); PCSO and 

other persons 

accredited under 

Community 

Accreditation Schemes 

under the Police Reform 

Act 2002.

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £50 - 

£80). Default 

£80

S 5B(2) Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989
Failure to produce authority (waste carrier’s 

licence)

Waste collection 

authorities and 

Environment Agency 

(acting through their 

Officers

Amount fixed at 

£300

s.34A(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990
Failure to furnish documentation (waste 

transfer notes)

Waste collection 

authorities and 

Environment Agency 

(acting through their 

officers)

Amount fixed at 

£300

s.47ZA(2) Environmental Protection Act 1990 Offences in relation to waste receptacles

Waste collection 

authority authorised 

officers

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £57-

£110). Default 

£110

s.59(2) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 Offences under Dog Control Orders

Authorised officers of 

primary and secondary 

authorities, including 

persons not directly 

employed by the 

authority, PCSO and 

other persons 

accredited under 

Community 

Accreditation Schemes 

under the Police Reform 

Act 2002

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £50 - 

£80). Default 

£80

s.73(2) Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005

Failure to nominate key-holder (within an 

alarm notification area) or to notify local 

authority in writing of nominated key-holder’s 

details

Local authority 

authorised officers, 

including persons not 

directly employed by the 

authority

Can be set at 

local level 

(between £50 - 

£80). Default 

£80

S.6(5) Health Act 2006 Failure to display no smoking signs
Local authority 

authorised officers

Amount set at 

£200 reduced 

to £150 if paid 

within 15 days

S.7(2) Health Act 2006
A person who smokes in a smoke-free place 

commits an offence.

Local authority 

authorised officers

Amount set at 

£50 reduced to 

£30 if paid 

within 15 days

Gardening Scheme From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

16 Visits from March - October 295.00 3.51% 10.00

Trees From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Tree Sponsorship Various N/A N/A

68



Highways From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Road Closures – Temporary Orders

Standard notice i.e. longer than 6 weeks notice (inclusive of adverts) 2000.00 45.45% 625.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

All Other 650 91.18% 310.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Individual Application 500.00 1.01% 5.00

Charitable bodies & community organisations - Application for one 

event during year
25.75 3.00% 0.75

Charitable bodies & Community organisations - Individual 

Applications in following first event
247.00 2.92% 7.00

Charitable bodies - Programme of more than 2 events if booked in-

bloc in advance (Up to 8 events)
510.00 3.03% 15.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Tables and chairs on the highway - renewal 100.00 100.00% 50.00

Pavement Licences 100.00 N/A N/A

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Administration Charges including Site Visit 100.00 3.09% 3.00

White Lining paint & labour Costs 75.00 11.94% 8.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Administration Charges including Site Visit 26.00 4.00% 1.00

Reinstate removed bay after e 3 review letter/request 255.00 2.00% 5.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Road closure signs & barriers (Deposit should be charged for signs 

and cones)
Price based on Application N/A N/A

Cones Price based on Application N/A N/A

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Change of property name 69.00 3.76% 2.50

New Development of 1 - 2 plots 74.20 -3.01% -2.30

New Development of 3 - 5 plots 148.30 11.92% 15.80

New Development of 6-10 plots 265.20 10.50% 25.20

New Development of 11 -20 plots 424.40 -0.84% -3.60

New Development of 21 or more 21.20 per plot N/A N/A

New postal address for an individual property 74.20 6.00% 4.20

Change to new addresses due to the development changing after the 

schedule has been issued (Per Plot)
25.75 0.98% 0.25

Change to new address due to the development changing after the 

schedule has been issued (Per plot)
25.75 0.98% 0.25

Hire Charges Traffic Management Signs and Cones

Street Naming and Numbering

Road Closures – Temporary Notice

Road Closure for Public Events - first application

Additional Highway Enquiries

Access Marking Charges

Disabled Bay Application

69



HEALTH AND WELLBEING Appendix C

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

House Inspection Fee re immigration compatibility 288.00 2.86% 8.00

Additional charge for revisit due to missed appointment by client 57.00 3.64% 2.00

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – up to 5 occupants 900.00 0.00% 0.00

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – over 5 occupants
31.00 per additional occupant up to a 

maximum of 1,150.00
N/A N/A

HMO Licensing (Houses in Multiple Occupation) – supplying existing 

plans
90.00 2.27% 2.00

Housing Health Check Visit 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Fee for service of Improvement Notice 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Fee for service of Prohibition Order 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Fee for service of Emergency Prohibition Order 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Fee for service of Emergency Remedial Notice 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Fee for reviewing Suspended Prohibition Order and Improvement 

Notice
170.00 3.03% 5.00

Caravan Sites From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

                                                                                                        

Caravan Site Licence Application base fee* 500.00 3.09% 15.00

Caravan Site Variation of Licence/Conditions Request 170.00 3.03% 5.00

Caravan Site Transfer of Licence Request 170.00 3.03% 5.00

Annual Administration of Site Licence base fee* 288.00 2.86% 8.00

Service of Compliance Notice 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Service of Works in default Notice 515.00 3.00% 15.00

Service of Emergency Works Notice 515.00 3.00% 15.00

*Cost of Inclusion on fit & proper person register 240.00 N/A 240.00

*Cost of depositing site rules with Local Authority 0.00 0.00% 0.00

No. of Homes

0 – 10

11 – 20

21 – 30

31 – 40

41 – 50

51 – 100

100 +

Housing (all Inc. VAT)

*   % increase/reduction in fee based on size of site

70



Places Leisure Eastleigh From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Hire of Equipment

Hire charge 2.95 3.51% 0.10

Centre - Wide Membership

Joining 31.55 3.10% 0.95

Family 945.55 3.00% 27.55

Single 473.00 3.05% 14.00

Gym

Casual Gym 8.50 3.03% 0.25

Group Ex & Les Mills

Step Reebok - off peak 6.70 3.08% 0.20

Step Reebok - peak 7.35 2.80% 0.20

Aerobics-off peak 6.70 3.08% 0.20

Aerobics- peak 7.35 2.80% 0.20

Aquatherapy 4.50 2.27% 0.10

Aquacise-peak 7.35 2.80% 0.20

Badminton - per hour

Peak 8.60 -33.07% -4.25

Off Peak Adult 6.50 -22.16% -1.85

Off Peak Junior 3.90 2.63% 0.10

Squash per 40 minutes

Peak 8.60 2.99% 0.25

Off Peak Adult 6.50 3.17% 0.20

Off Peak Junior 2.85 3.64% 0.10

Squash Club 8.00 3.23% 0.25

Table Tennis - per hour

Adult 4.85 3.19% 0.15

Junior 2.35 4.44% 0.10

 Main Hall 5 courts

Adult - peak 72.50 2.98% 2.10

Adult - off peak 55.00 3.77% 2.00

Off peak Junior 28.40 3.09% 0.85

Special Activities

Studio per hour 54.65 3.11% 1.65

Forever Active 5.15 3.00% 0.15

Forever Active Additional Gym 1.80 2.86% 0.05

Creche - per 1/2 hour N/A N/A N/A

Fit n Mix ( Tues & Thurs ) N/A N/A N/A

Active Play and Bounce Parent + 1 4.00 5.26% 0.20

Active Play and Bounce Additional Child 1.45 3.57% 0.05

Artificial Turf Full Pitch - per hour

Peak Adult 86.15 2.99% 2.50

Peak Junior 51.50 3.00% 1.50

Off Peak Adult 44.15 3.03% 1.30

Off Peak Junior 28.40 3.09% 0.85

All Weather Pitch - per hour

Peak Adult 47.40 3.04% 1.40

Peak Junior 24.20 3.20% 0.75

Peak Junior (FA Charter) 20.50 2.50% 0.50

Off Peak Adult 32.60 3.00% 0.95

Off Peak Junior 14.70 2.80% 0.40

Friday Night Soccer 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Tennis (Outdoor per court- per hour)

Peak Adult N/A N/A N/A

Peak Junior N/A N/A N/A

Off Peak Adult N/A N/A N/A

Off Peak Junior N/A N/A N/A

Netball (Outdoor per court per hour)

Peak Adult 22.80 3.17% 0.70

Peak Junior 8.00 2.56% 0.20

Off Peak Adult 9.00 4.05% 0.35

Off Peak Junior 3.70 2.78% 0.10

Cricket

Pitch with dressing room - half day 80.00 4.58% 3.50

Pitch with dressing room - evening 34.70 -54.64% -41.80

Pitch for Juniors (no dressing room) 13.00 -52.81% -14.55

Football

Pitch - Adults (90 min game) 80.00 3.16% 2.45

Pitch - Juniors (Under 18- 90 min game) 34.70 3.12% 1.05

Mini soccer pitch (40 min game) 13.00 2.77% 0.35

Bowls

Singles, pairs, triples or rinks per hour 5.90 1.72% 0.10

Woods - per hour or part hour 1.65 3.12% 0.05

Season ticket (May-Sept) 143.00 3.06% 4.25

Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 74.60 3.04% 2.20

Season ticket (May - Sept) OAP 72.50 2.98% 2.10

Season ticket (Oct-Apr) Scapagreen 37.80 3.00% 1.10

Junior rink per hour per person 3.15 1.61% 0.05

Season ticket junior 34.70 3.12% 1.05

Swimming

Adult 5.50 3.77% 0.20

Junior 2.75 3.77% 0.10

Family Swim 2 Ad + 3 Jun 13.15 3.14% 0.40

Pool Hire

Both Pools 148.00 3.64% 5.20

Main Pool 102.00 3.03% 3.00

Teaching Pool 56.00 3.70% 2.00

1 lane 20.00 0.03 0.60

71



The Hub with the effect from 1 April 2022

Activity or Equipment Hire From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Tennis per Hour 8.00 2.56% 0.20

Tennis per Hour 4.00 2.56% 0.10

Tennis per Hour 6.00 3.45% 0.20

Tennis per Hour 2.50 4.17% 0.10

Basketball Flood Lights 8.75 2.94% 0.25

AWP Full 59.00 3.51% 2.00

AWP Full 46.00 3.37% 1.50

AWP Full 33.50 3.08% 1.00

AWP Full 24.20 2.98% 0.70

AWP Half 37.00 2.78% 1.00

AWP Half 26.30 3.14% 0.80

AWP Half 18.00 2.86% 0.50

AWP Half 12.40 3.33% 0.40

Sports Hall Per Hour 36.00 2.86% 1.00

Sports Hall Per Hour 30.00 3.45% 1.00

Studio per Hour 26.80 3.08% 0.80

Table Tennis per 55 mins 7.00 2.94% 0.20

Table Tennis per 55 Mins 5.15 3.00% 0.15

Table Tennis per 55 mins 6.00 N/A 6.00

Table Tennis per 55 mins 3.40 N/A 3.40

Badminton per Court per hr 11.50 3.60% 0.40

Badminton per Court per hr 6.90 2.99% 0.20

Badminton per Court per hr 8.00 3.90% 0.30

Badminton per Court per hr 3.60 2.86% 0.10

Racquet Hire 1.65 N/A 1.65

Shuttles/Balls per tube hire 1.65 N/A 1.65

Adult Rates = Age 16+

72



HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT Appendix D

PLANNING From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Planning application fee Variable N/A N/A

Planning performance agreement Variable N/A N/A

Permitted development enquiry 90.00 5.88% 5.00

Article 4 Direction 55.00 2.80% 1.50

Copy of plans - A4 0.20 0.00% 0.00

A3 0.30 0.00% 0.00

Larger than A3 4.00 6.67% 0.25

Additional copies 50% of original charge N/A N/A

Planning Decision Notices Free of charge on website or 33.00 N/A N/A

Copies of Tree Preservation Orders 55.50 2.78% 1.50

Copy of Section 52/106 Agreements Free of charge on website or 55.50 N/A N/A

Design Access Statement per Page 1.50 3.45% 0.05

Personal searches Statutory N/A N/A

Section 52/106 compliance check 205.00 2.50% 5.00

Planning Condition Compliance Check 205.00 2.50% 5.00

Comprehensive Planning Site 152.50 3.04% 4.50

Hedge Conciliation 735.00 0.68% 5.00

Hedge Conciliation - Concession 195.00 2.63% 5.00

Weekly list of applications: From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

One week 16.50 3.13% 0.50

Yearly subscription 650.00 1.56% 10.00

Planning Obligations From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

S106 - variation 550.00 0.92% 5.00

Pre-application Advice Fees From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

House Holder Pre-Application Enquiry 90.00 2.86% 2.50

Pre Application for a change of use 420.00 1.20% 5.00

Pre-application advice – small minor 1 290.00 5.45% 15.00

Pre-application advice – large minor 2 470.00 2.17% 10.00

Pre-application advice – major 3 1150.00 6.98% 75.00

Pre-application advice – large major 4 2290.00 4.57% 100.00

Additional Meetings – Householder pre-app and small minor (1) 112.00 1.82% 2.00

Additional Meetings – large minor (2), change of use 158.00 1.94% 3.00

Additional Meetings – major (3 and 4) 220.00 1.15% 2.50

Condition pre-application advice (Non Householder) 95.00 2.15% 2.00

Land Searches From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Full Official Search (Hard Copy) 194.00 6.01% 11.00

Full Official Search (Electronic) 194.00 6.01% 11.00

LLC1 (Hard Copy) 49.70 0.00% 0.00

Part II enquiries (Hard copy or electronic) 21.50 7.50% 1.50

Part II Question 2 Commons Registration 32.00 6.67% 2.00

Part I enquiries – additional parcels of land 26.00 5.52% 1.36

Further copies of searches 16.50 10.00% 1.50

Personal Searches (statutory) Free N/A N/A

Personal Searches – Photocopying See charges under planning N/A N/A

Refresher search within 6 months only 95.00 1.99% 1.85

Solicitors own enquiry 25.50 10.87% 2.50

Building Control From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Building regulation fees Various N/A N/A

73



ENVIRONMENT Appendix E

ANIMAL WELFARE

Collection of Stray Dogs From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

(Kennelling Fees)

Collection only (no kennelling) 88.00 3.53% 3.00

One days kennelling 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Two days kennelling 129.00 3.20% 4.00

Three days kennelling 149.00 2.76% 4.00

Four days kennelling 170.00 3.03% 5.00

Five days kennelling 191.00 3.24% 6.00

Six days kennelling 211.00 2.93% 6.00

Seven days kennelling 232.00 3.11% 7.00

Administrative fee for kennelling 10.30 3.00% 0.30

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
263.00 3.14% 8.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year 137.00 3.01% 4.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 273.00 3.02% 8.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 410.00 3.02% 12.00

Application - New Licence (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
283.00 2.91% 8.00

New Compliance/Enforcement only 1 Year 137.00 3.01% 4.00

New Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 273.00 3.02% 8.00

Variation 105.00 2.94% 3.00

Replacement 21.20 3.41% 0.70

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
138.00 2.99% 4.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year 116.00 3.11% 3.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 242.00 2.98% 7.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 347.00 2.97% 10.00

Application - New Licence (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
160.00 3.23% 5.00

New Compliance/Enforcement only 1 Year 116.00 3.11% 3.50

New Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 232.00 3.11% 7.00

Variation 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Replacement 21.10 2.93% 0.60

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application Fee (Will also require at least one Host Family fee) 126.00 2.86% 3.50

Each host Family 64.00 3.23% 2.00

Replacement Lost Licence 21.10 2.93% 0.60

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application for License Exempt Franchise Host Family 108.50 3.33% 3.50

Replacement Lost Licence 21.10 2.93% 0.60

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
262.50 2.94% 7.50

Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year 139.00 2.96% 4.00

Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 273.00 3.02% 8.00

Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 407.00 3.04% 12.00

Variation 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Replacement 21.20 3.41% 0.70

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
293.50 2.98% 8.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement 3 Years 211.50 3.17% 6.50

Application - New Licence (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
314.00 2.95% 9.00

New Compliance/Enforcement only 3 Years 211.00 2.93% 6.00

Variation 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Replacement 21.20 3.41% 0.70

Breeding

Home boarding

Home Boarding Franchise Holding Co

Home Boarding Licence Exampt Host Family

Boarding Day Care

Performing Animals

74



From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year 211.00 2.93% 6.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 422.50 3.05% 12.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 628.50 3.03% 18.50

Application - New Licence (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
422.50 3.05% 12.50

New Compliance/Enforcement only 1 Year 211.00 2.93% 6.00

New Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 422.50 3.05% 12.50

Variation 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Replacement 21.20 3.41% 0.70

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Application - Renewal (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
293.50 2.98% 8.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year 108.50 3.33% 3.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 211.00 2.93% 6.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 314.00 2.95% 9.00

Application - New Licence (Also requires Compliance/Enforcement for 

required term)
314.50 3.11% 9.50

New Compliance/Enforcement only 1 Year 108.00 2.86% 3.00

New Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 211.00 2.93% 6.00

Variation 108.00 2.86% 3.00

Replacement 21.20 3.41% 0.70

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year (Plus per Horse) 396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 505.00 3.06% 15.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 608.00 3.05% 18.00

Plus £10 per horse (max £100) 10.30 3.00% 0.30

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year (Plus per Horse) 396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 505.00 3.06% 15.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 608.00 3.05% 18.00

Plus £10 per horse (max £200) 10.30 3.00% 0.30

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year (Plus per Horse) 396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 505.00 3.06% 15.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 608.00 3.05% 18.00

Plus £10 per horse (max £300) 10.30 3.00% 0.30

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year (Plus per Horse) 396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 505.00 3.06% 15.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 608.00 3.05% 18.00

Plus £10 per horse 10.30 3.00% 0.30

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement just 1 Year (Plus per Horse) 396.50 2.99% 11.50

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 2 Years 505.00 3.06% 15.00

Renewal Compliance/Enforcement for 3 Years 608.00 3.05% 18.00

Plus £10 per horse 10.30 3.00% 0.30

Pet Shops

Horse Riding

Horse Riding (Up to 10)

Horse Riding (11-20)

Horse Riding (21-30)

Horse Riding (30+)

Horse Riding (30+)

75



ECONOMY Appendix F

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Level 2 Food hygiene/health and safety refresher course (public 

courses per person)
39.00 2.63% 1.00

Level 2 Food hygiene/health and safety course (public courses per 

person)
84.50 3.05% 2.50

Level 3 Food hygiene/health and safety course (public courses per 

person)
392.00 3.16% 12.00

Commercial Training courses To be negotiated based on hourly rate/costs N/A N/A

Surrender certificates (disposal of food) 242.00 2.98% 7.00

Certificates in respect of foodstuffs for export 96.00 3.23% 3.00

Imported food stuffs Cost of sampling/disposal & officer time N/A N/A

Primary authority work. 70.00 2.94% 2.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Food premises rescores 155.00 3.33% 5.00

Skin Piercing - premises and 1 practitioner 150.00 3.45% 5.00

Skin piercing – registration fee for additional practitioners 37.00 2.78% 1.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Single event (Two days or less per event.  Max two days or 20 hours 

in any year per applicant/business)
13.50 3.85% 0.50

Single Event (Three to seven days in a block) 50.00 2.04% 1.00

Annual Consent / Licence (One day/night per week) 721.00 3.00% 21.00

Annual Consent / Licence 2 days / nights per week) 819.00 3.02% 24.00

Annual Consent / Licence 3 days / nights per week) 915.00 3.04% 27.00

Annual Consent / Licence 4 days / nights per week) 1015.00 3.05% 30.00

Annual Consent / Licence 5 days / nights per week) 1112.00 2.96% 32.00

Annual Consent / Licence 6 days / nights per week) 1210.00 3.15% 37.00

Annual Consent / Licence 7 days / nights per week) 1310.00 3.15% 40.00

Revenues

Court Costs 98.00 3.16% 3.00

Charging orders 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Economic Development

Sorting Office residents – open unit per month N/A N/A N/A

Sorting Office residents – lockable units p/m N/A N/A N/A

Basement 5.2 78.00 N/A N/A

Basement- 16.3 175.00 N/A N/A

Ground 10.5 157.00 N/A N/A

Ground 37.5 150 per person N/A N/A

First 10.5 157.00 N/A N/A

First 20.3 152 per person N/A N/A

Second 8.7 130.00 N/A N/A

Second 17.6 132 per perosn N/A N/A

Sorting Office Open Studios – stall hire with table 75.00 7.14% 5.00

Sorting Office Open Studios – stall hire with own table 70.00 7.69% 5.00

Sorting Office Open Studios – 4 foot space 50.00 0.00% 0.00

Production House hire per day N/A N/A N/A

Production House hire per half day N/A N/A N/A

Business conference stall hire 125.00 0.00% 0.00

Market stall pitch hire 10.00 0.00% 0.00

Market stall gazeebo hire 20.00 0.00% 0.00

Sponsorship Negotiable, depending on item N/A N/A

Food Safety/Health and Safety

Food Premises Register

Street Trading Licences/Consents

76



ASSET MANAGEMENT Appendix G

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Surveyor’s fees (excluding any Legal fees) for agreeing terms for a 

deed of easement, right of way
Minimum charge of £515 3.00% 15.00

Surveyor’s fees (excluding any legal fees) for the valuation and terms 

for the removal/variation of a restrictive covenant

  Escalating subject to scale of 

development.£260 minimum fee where a 

simple letter of consent is issued for 

alterations to former council house.  A charge 

of £50 where the alteration is to a disabled 

person's dwelling house to improve access, 

safety, comfort etc

4.00% 10.00

Administration fee to review initial enquiries/requests from residents 

to purchase Council land/reversionary freehold interests

Minimum £155.  Then capital receipt subject 

to negotiation.
3.33% 5.00

Surveyors fees to (excluding any legal fees) for the valuation and 

agreement of terms for the sale of Council land
Minimum charge of £515 3.00% 15.00

Surveyor’s fees (excluding Legal fees) involved in obtaining Landlord 

consent to tenant requests

Minimum charge between £360-515, up to 

max fee tbc.
2.86% 10.00

Administration Fee non refundable for garage lettings 75.00 50.00% 25.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Chargeable Legal Work to include inter alia prosecutions; property 

work and planning obligations
Between £125 and £205 per hour 3.00% N/A

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Eastleigh House – Meeting Room Hire Rates

Room Hire Rate 1 – Up to 10 persons

Per Hour 16.70 3.09% 0.50

Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 50.40 3.07% 1.50

Per Day 88.80 3.02% 2.60

Evenings 55.60 2.96% 1.60

Double Room Hire Rate 2 – Up to 20 persons Boardroom or 50 

persons Theatre

Per Hour 28.10 2.93% 0.80

Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 83.30 2.97% 2.40

Per Day 143.90 3.01% 4.20

Evenings 88.80 3.02% 2.60

Triple Room Hire Rate 3 – Up to 26 persons Boardroom or 60 

persons Theatre

Per Hour 33.60 3.07% 1.00

Per Half Day (no more than 4 Hours) 100.10 2.98% 2.90

Per Day 189.60 2.99% 5.50

Evenings 105.00 2.94% 3.00

Catering Services for External Meetings

Provided by HC3S – Tel. 01962 573609

Asset Management Services

Legal Services

77



GOVERNANCE AND STRATEGIC PLANNING Appendix H

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Roundabout Sponsorship

Cost per sign per year 

(Subject to concession for multiple purchases)
1325.00 0.00 0.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Planning Policy

Local Plan 129.00 3.20% 4.00

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

Elections 

Copies of election expenses (parliamentary) 20p per slide N/A N/A

Electoral Register (full and open) - Paper copy
£10 admin fee + £5 per 1000 electors (or 

part)
N/A N/A

Electoral Register (full and open) - Data copy
£20 admin fee + £1.50 per 1000 electors (or 

part)
N/A N/A

Marked Registers (polling stations & absent voters) - Paper copies
£10 admin fee + £2 per 1000 electors (or 

part)
N/A N/A

Marked Registers (polling stations & absent voters) - Data copies
£10 admin fee + £1 per 1000 electors (or 

part)
N/A N/A

78



LOCAL OPERATIONS Appendix I 

From 1/1/22 £ Change % Change £

SLR\SID

Deploying the SLR\SID for external 75.00 0.00 0.00

Organisations Per Deployment

79



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE ACTION LIST 

 
MEETING 

DATE 
ITEM TITLE RECOMMENDATION/ACTION CONTACT 

OFFICER/ 
COMMITTEE 

TARGET 
DATE/ 

COMPLETED 

UPDATES 

10/03/2020 6. Internal Audit 
Charter 2020/21 

Review the possibility of obtaining an 
external assessment of compliance with the 
Standards through a reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local Authority. 

Jo Cassar  A reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local 
Authority is currently not 
possible due to resource 
capacity. The Chief 
Internal Auditor (Acting) 
has obtained a 
reasonable quote from a 
specialist company to 
carry out this assessment 
which has come in at 
£2450.00 (There is no 
VAT). 

 7.      

 8.      

 

81

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: November 2021 to February 2022 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

9 December 2021 
 

Yes 

 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve the 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy. 

Helen Devereux, 
Property Lawyer /  
 

Yes 

 
Trees and Development 
Supplementary Planning 
Document  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

Cabinet is asked to 
agree the final draft 
of the Trees and 
Development 
Supplementary 
Planning Document 
and adopt it formally 
for use in conjunction 
with the new Local 
Plan.  

Dawn Heppell /  
 

83

A
genda Item

 12



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Biodiversity Strategy  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the draft Biodiversity 
Strategy to go out for public 
consultation, with the 
amended final document 
brought back for adoption 
after the consultation period. 

Paul Howe, 
Ecologist /  
 

Yes 

 
Asset Transfer Policy  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

This document codifies 
previous documents that 
over several years have 
made up the long-standing 
policy on Asset Transfers to 
parish and town councils. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

10 January 2022 
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   10 Jan 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   10 Jan 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

84



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

17 February 2022 
 

Yes 

 
Capital and Treasury Strategy  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
2022 - 2023 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2022 – 2023 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 
Publication Date: 15 November 2021 
 

85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

AS AT NOVEMBER 2021 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

Annual Staffing Matters Annual 
(March from 
2022) 

Head of HR & 
Union 
Representative 

    

11 January 
2022 

   

 Statement of Accounts  Andy Smith 

 Hampshire Community Bank Update  Sarah King 

 Bad Debt Report  Tom Andrews/ 
Mark 

 Annual Governance Statement  Jo Cassar 

 Regulation of Investigating Powers 
Policy 

 Legal Services 
Manager 

 Verbal Updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

8 February 
2022 

   

 Repairs and Renewals Report  Nigel Stephens 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3) 

 Lisa Smy 

 Asset Management Strategy Annual L Suatt 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

8 March 2022    

 Verbal Updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Property Portfolio Update  L Suatt 

 Staffing Report  Shirley Robbins 
Sukhi Aujla 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

87

Agenda Item 13



 A&R Work Programme   

    

May 2022 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

 Members 

 

Items to be tabled   

Regulation of Investigating Powers 
Policy 

 Legal Services Manager 

 

88


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 2020/21 External Audit Progress Update
	6 Annual Governance Statement
	Appendix 1 Corporate Governance Statement
	Appendix 2 Corporate Governance Statement

	7 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr 2)
	8 Corporate Fees and Charges
	Appendix for Corporate Fees and Charges_v1

	11 Action List
	12 Cabinet Forward Plan
	13 A&R Work Programme

